
 

 
You can view the agenda on the website  
or use a smart phone camera and scan the code 

 
 

 
  

To: 
 
The Chair and Members 
of the Audit Committee 
 

 
County Hall 
Topsham Road 
Exeter 
Devon  
EX2 4QD 
 

 

Date:  17 November 2023 Contact:  Wendy Simpson, 01392 384383 
Email:  wendy.simpson@devon.gov.uk 

 
AUDIT COMMITTEE 

 
Monday, 27th November, 2023 

 
A meeting of the Audit Committee is to be held on the above date at 2.15 pm at 
Committee Suite - County Hall to consider the following matters. 
 
 Donna Manson 
 Chief Executive 
 

A G E N D A 
 
  
 PART I - OPEN COMMITTEE 

  
1 Apologies for absence  
 
 
2 Minutes  
 
 Minutes of the meeting held on 25 September 2023 (previously circulated).  

  
3 Items Requiring Urgent Attention  
 
 Items which in the opinion of the Chair should be considered at the meeting as a 

matter of urgency. 
  

4 Devon Pension Fund - Audit Findings (Pages 1 - 34) 
 
 Report of Grant Thornton, attached. 

  
  

https://www.devon.gov.uk/democracy


5 Devon County Council Audit Progress and Sector Update (Pages 35 - 56) 
 
 Report of Grant Thornton, attached. 

  
6 Internal Audit Update (Pages 57 - 86) 
 
 Report of the Director of Finance and Public Value (FPV/23/118), attached. 

  
7 Risk Management Update (Pages 87 - 102) 
 
 Report of the Director of Finance and Public Value (FPV/23/117), attached. 

  
8 Counter Fraud Update (Pages 103 - 114) 
 
 Report of the Director of Finance and Public Value (FPV/23/118), attached. 

  
 PART II - ITEMS WHICH MAY BE TAKEN IN THE ABSENCE OF PRESS AND 

PUBLIC ON THE GROUNDS THAT EXEMPT INFORMATION MAY BE 
DISCLOSED 
  

9 Exclusion of the Press and Public  
 
 Recommendation: that the press and public be excluded from the meeting for the 

following items of business under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 
1972 on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information 
as defined in Paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A of the Act, namely information relating 
to the financial or business affairs of the County Council and, in accordance with 
Section 36 of the Freedom of Information Act 2000, by virtue of the fact that the 
public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in 
disclosing the information. 
  

10 IT Asset Management (Pages 115 - 128) 
 
 Report of the Director of Finance and Public Value (FPV/23/116), attached. 

 
 
 
Members are reminded that Part II Reports contain exempt information and should 
therefore be treated accordingly.  They should not be disclosed or passed on to any 
other person(s). They need to be disposed of carefully and should be returned to the 
Democratic Services Officer at the conclusion of the meeting for disposal. 
 



MEETINGS INFORMATION AND NOTES FOR VISITORS 
 
Getting to County Hall and Notes for Visitors   
For SatNav purposes, the postcode for County Hall is EX2 4QD 
 
Further information about how to get to County Hall gives information on visitor 
parking at County Hall and bus routes. 
 
Exeter has an excellent network of dedicated cycle routes. For further information 
see the Travel Devon webpages.  
 
The nearest mainline railway stations are Exeter Central (5 minutes from the High 
Street), St David’s and St Thomas. All have regular bus services to the High Street.  
 
Visitors to County Hall are asked to report to Main Reception on arrival. If visitors 
have any specific requirements, please contact reception on 01392 382504 
beforehand.  
 
Membership of a Committee  
For full details of the Membership of a Committee, please visit the Committee page 
on the website and click on the name of the Committee you wish to see.  
 
Committee Terms of Reference  
For the terms of reference for any Committee, please visit the Committee page on 
the website and click on the name of the Committee. Under purpose of Committee, 
the terms of reference will be listed. Terms of reference for all Committees are also 
detailed within Section 3b of the Council’s Constitution.  
 
Access to Information 
Any person wishing to inspect any minutes, reports or background papers relating to 
an item on the agenda should contact the Clerk of the Meeting. To find this, visit the 
Committee page on the website and find the Committee. Under contact information 
(at the bottom of the page) the Clerk’s name and contact details will be present. All 
agenda, reports and minutes of any Committee are published on the Website  
 
Public Participation 
The Council operates a Public Participation Scheme where members of the public 
can interact with various Committee meetings in a number of ways. For full details of 
whether or how you can participate in a meeting, please look at the Public 
Participation Scheme or contact the Clerk for the meeting. 
 
In relation to Highways and Traffic Orders Committees, any member of the District 
Council or a Town or Parish Councillor for the area covered by the HATOC who is 
not a member of the Committee, may attend and speak to any item on the Agenda 
with the consent of the Committee, having given 24 hours’ notice. 
 
Webcasting, Recording or Reporting of Meetings and Proceedings 
The proceedings of any meeting may be recorded and / or broadcasted live, apart 
from any confidential items which may need to be considered in the absence of the 
press and public. For more information go to our webcasting pages  

https://new.devon.gov.uk/help/visiting-county-hall/
https://www.traveldevon.info/cycle/
https://democracy.devon.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
https://democracy.devon.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
https://democracy.devon.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=416&MId=2487&Ver=4&info=1
https://democracy.devon.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
https://democracy.devon.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
https://democracy.devon.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
https://www.devon.gov.uk/democracy/guide/public-participation-at-committee-meetings/part-1-can-i-attend-a-meeting/
https://www.devon.gov.uk/democracy/guide/public-participation-at-committee-meetings/part-1-can-i-attend-a-meeting/
https://devoncc.public-i.tv/core/portal/home


Anyone wishing to film part or all of the proceedings may do so unless the press and 
public are excluded for that part of the meeting or there is good reason not to do so, 
as directed by the Chair.  Filming must be done as unobtrusively as possible without 
additional lighting; focusing only on those actively participating in the meeting and 
having regard to the wishes of others present who may not wish to be filmed. 
Anyone wishing to film proceedings is asked to advise the Chair or the Democratic 
Services Officer in attendance.  
 
Members of the public may also use social media to report on proceedings.  
 
Declarations of Interest for Members of the Council  
It is to be noted that Members of the Council must declare any interest they may 
have in any item to be considered at this meeting, prior to any discussion taking 
place on that item. 
 
WiFI 
An open, publicly available Wi-Fi network (i.e. DCC) is normally available for 
meetings held in the Committee Suite at County Hall. 
 
Fire  
In the event of the fire alarm sounding, leave the building immediately by the nearest 
available exit following the fire exit signs.  If doors fail to unlock press the Green 
break glass next to the door. Do not stop to collect personal belongings; do not use 
the lifts; and do not re-enter the building until told to do so. Assemble either on the 
cobbled car parking area adjacent to the administrative buildings or in the car park 
behind Bellair. 
 
First Aid 
Contact Main Reception (Extension 2504) for a trained first aider.  
 
Mobile Phones 
Please switch off all mobile phones before entering the Committee Room or Council 
Chamber 
 
Alternative Formats 
If anyone needs a copy of an Agenda and/or a Report in 
another format (e.g. large print, audio tape, Braille or other 
languages), please contact the Customer Service Centre on 
0345 155 1015 or email: committee@devon.gov.uk or write to 
the Democratic and Scrutiny Secretariat in G31, County Hall, 
Exeter, EX2 4QD. 
Induction Loop available  

 

mailto:committee@devon.gov.uk


P
age 1

A
genda Item

 4



Commercial in confidence

P
age 2

A
genda Item

 4



Commercial in confidence

•

•P
age 3

A
genda Item

 4



Commercial in confidence

P
age 4

A
genda Item

 4

https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/globalassets/1.-member-firms/united-kingdom/pdf/publication/2023/about-time-local-authority-reports.pdf


Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 5

A
genda Item

 4



Commercial in confidence

P
age 6

A
genda Item

 4



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 7

A
genda Item

 4



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 8

A
genda Item

 4



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 9

A
genda Item

 4



Commercial in confidence

P
age 10

A
genda Item

 4



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•









P
age 11

A
genda Item

 4



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•









P
age 12

A
genda Item

 4



Commercial in confidence

P
age 13

A
genda Item

 4



Commercial in confidence

P
age 14

A
genda Item

 4



Commercial in confidence

.

P
age 15

A
genda Item

 4



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 16

A
genda Item

 4



Commercial in confidence

P
age 17

A
genda Item

 4



Commercial in confidence

P
age 18

A
genda Item

 4

https://www.grantthornton.global/globalassets/1.-member-firms/global/grant-thornton-international-ltd-transparency-report-may-2023.pdf


Commercial in confidence

P
age 19

A
genda Item

 4



Commercial in confidence

P
age 20

A
genda Item

 4



Commercial in confidence

Appendices





 

 



















P
age 21

A
genda Item

 4



Commercial in confidence







P
age 22

A
genda Item

 4



Commercial in confidence

✓

P
age 23

A
genda Item

 4



Commercial in confidence

✓

P
age 24

A
genda Item

 4



Commercial in confidence

P
age 25

A
genda Item

 4



Commercial in confidence

P
age 26

A
genda Item

 4



Commercial in confidence

P
age 27

A
genda Item

 4



Commercial in confidence

•
•
•
•

•
•
•
•
•

•

•
•

P
age 28

A
genda Item

 4



Commercial in confidence

Independent auditor's report to the members Devon County Council on the pension fund financial statements of Devon 

Pension Fund 

Opinion on financial statements

We have audited the financial statements of Devon Pension Fund (the ‘Pension Fund’) administered by Devon County Council (the ‘Authority’) for the year ended 31 March 2023, which 

comprise the Fund Account, the Net Assets Statement and notes to the pension fund financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting 

framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2022/23.

In our opinion, the financial statements:

• give a true and fair view of the financial transactions of the Pension Fund during the year ended 31 March 2023 and of the amount and disposition at that date of the fund’s assets 

and liabilities;

• have been properly prepared in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2022/23; and 

• have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law, as required by the Code of Audit Practice (2020) (“the Code of Audit 

Practice”) approved by the Comptroller and Auditor General. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial 

statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the Authority in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Pension Fund’s financial statements in 

the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have 

obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

We are responsible for concluding on the appropriateness of the Director of Finance and Public Value’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence 

obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Pension Fund’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude 

that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify the 

auditor’s opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Pension Fund to cease to 

continue as a going concern.

P
age 29

A
genda Item

 4



Commercial in confidence

In our evaluation of the Director of Finance and Public Value’s conclusions, and in accordance with the expectation set out within the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority 

Accounting in the United Kingdom 2022/23 that the Pension Fund’s financial statements shall be prepared on a going concern basis, we considered the inherent risks associated with the 

continuation of services provided by the Pension Fund. In doing so we had regard to the guidance provided in Practice Note 10 Audit of financial statements and regularity of public sector 

bodies in the United Kingdom (Revised 2022) on the application of ISA (UK) 570 Going Concern to public sector entities. We assessed the reasonableness of the basis of preparation used 

by the Authority in the Pension Fund financial statements and the disclosures in the Pension Fund financial statements over the going concern period.

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Director of Finance and Public Value’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the Pension Fund 

financial statements is appropriate. 

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the 

Pension Fund’s ability to continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statemen ts are authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Director of Finance and Public Value with respect to going concern are described in the relevant sections of this report.

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the Statement of Accounts and Annual Governance Statement, other than the Pension Fund’s financial statements and our 

auditor’s report thereon, and our auditor’s report on the Authority’s financial statements. The Director of Finance and Public Value is responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the 

financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Pension Fund financial statements or our 

knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine 

whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 

information, we are required to report that fact. 

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinion on other matters required by the Code of Audit Practice (2020) published by the National Audit Office on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General (the Code of 

Audit Practice)

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit of the Pension Fund’s financial statements, the other information published together with the Pension Fund’s financial 

statements in the Statement of Accounts and Annual Governance Statement for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the Pension Fund financial 

statements.

P
age 30

A
genda Item

 4



Commercial in confidence

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

Under the Code of Audit Practice, we are required to report to you if:

• we issue a report in the public interest under section 24 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or

• we make a written recommendation to the Authority under section 24 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or

• we make an application to the court for a declaration that an item of account is contrary to law under Section 28 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in the course of, or at 

the conclusion of the audit; or; 

• we issue an advisory notice under Section 29 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or 

• we make an application for judicial review under Section 31 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit.

We have nothing to report in respect of the above matters in relation to the Pension Fund.

Responsibilities of the Authority and the Director of Finance and Public Value 

As explained more fully in the Statement of Responsibilities set out on page 154, the Authority is required to make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to 

secure that one of its officers has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs. In this authority, that officer is the Director of Finance and Public Value. The Director of Finance and 

Public Value is responsible for the preparation of the Statement of Accounts and Annual Governance Statement, which includes the Pension Fund’s financial statements, in accordance with 

proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2022/23, for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and 

for such internal control as the Director of Finance and Public Value determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 

whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the Pension Fund’s financial statements, the Director of Finance and Public Value is responsible for assessing the Pension Fund’s ability to continue as a going concern, 

disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless they have been informed by the relevant national body of the intention to 

dissolve the Pension Fund without the transfer of its services to another public sector entity.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Pension Fund’s financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and 

to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guaran tee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will 

always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users 

taken on the basis of these financial statements. Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. The extent to which our procedures are capable of 

detecting irregularities, including fraud, is detailed below.

P
age 31

A
genda Item

 4



Commercial in confidence

We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks that are applicable to the Pension Fund and determined that the most significant which are directly relevant to specific 

assertions in the financial statements are those related to the reporting framework the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2022/23, the 

Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015, the Local Government Act 2003, the Public Service Pensions Act 2013, the Local Government Pension 

Scheme Regulations 2013 and the Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds) Regulations 2016.

We enquired of management and the Audit Committee concerning the Authority’s policies and procedures relating to:

• the identification, evaluation and compliance with laws and regulations;

• the detection and response to the risks of fraud; and

• the establishment of internal controls to mitigate risks related to fraud or non-compliance with laws and regulations.

We enquired of management, internal audit and the Audit Committee whether they were aware of any instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations or whether they had any 

knowledge of actual, suspected or alleged fraud.

We assessed the susceptibility of the Pension Fund’s financial statements to material misstatement, including how fraud might occur, by evaluating management’s incentives and 

opportunities for manipulation of the financial statements. This included the evaluation of the risk of management override of controls. We determined that the principal risks were in relation to 

journals, accounting estimates and critical judgements made by management. Our audit procedures involved:

• evaluation of the design effectiveness of controls that management has in place to prevent and detect fraud,

• journal entry testing, with a focus on large and unusual journals and those posted by senior officers,

• challenging assumptions and judgements made by management in its significant accounting estimates in respect of the valuation of level 3 investments and IAS 26 pensions liability 

valuations, and

• assessing the extent of compliance with the relevant laws and regulations as part of our procedures on the related financial statement item.

These audit procedures were designed to provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements were free from fraud or error. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to 

fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one resulting from error and detecting irregularities that result from fraud is inherently more difficult than detecting those that result from error, as 

fraud may involve collusion, deliberate concealment, forgery or intentional misrepresentations. Also, the further removed non-compliance with laws and regulations is from events and 

transactions reflected in the financial statements, the less likely we would become aware of it.

We communicated relevant laws and regulations and potential fraud risks to all engagement team members, including the management override of controls and the potential for fraud in 

revenue and expenditure recognition. We remained alert to any indications of non-compliance with laws and regulations, including fraud, throughout the audit.

P
age 32

A
genda Item

 4



Commercial in confidence

Our assessment of the appropriateness of the collective competence and capabilities of the engagement team included consideration of the engagement team's.

• understanding of, and practical experience with audit engagements of a similar nature and complexity through appropriate training and participation

• knowledge of the local government pensions sector

• understanding of the legal and regulatory requirements specific to the Pension Fund including:

o the provisions of the applicable legislation

o guidance issued by CIPFA/LASAAC and SOLACE

o the applicable statutory provisions.

In assessing the potential risks of material misstatement, we obtained an understanding of:

• the Pension Fund’s operations, including the nature of its income and expenditure and its services and of its objectives and strategies to understand the classes of transactions, 

account balances, expected financial statement disclosures and business risks that may result in risks of material misstatement.

• the Authority's control environment, including the policies and procedures implemented by the Authority to ensure compliance with the requirements of the financial reporting 

framework.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial Reporting Council’s website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This 

description forms part of our auditor’s report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the members of the Authority, as a body, in accordance with Part 5 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, and as set out in paragraph 44 of the 

Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies published by Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the 

Authority’s members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fu llest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume 

responsibility to anyone other than the Authority and the Authority's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Signature:         

Peter Barber, Key Audit Partner

for and on behalf of Grant Thornton UK LLP, Local Auditor

Bristol

Date:

P
age 33

A
genda Item

 4

http://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities


P
age 34

A
genda Item

 4



P
age 35

A
genda Item

 5



Commercial in confidence

P
age 36

A
genda Item

 5



Commercial in confidence

•

•

P
age 37

A
genda Item

 5

mailto:peter.a.barber@uk.gt.com
mailto:sam.g.harding@uk.gt.com
mailto:David.bray@uk.gt.com
https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/services/public-sector-services/


Commercial in confidence

P
age 38

A
genda Item

 5



Commercial in confidence

P
age 39

A
genda Item

 5



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

P
age 40

A
genda Item

 5



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

P
age 41

A
genda Item

 5



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•P
age 42

A
genda Item

 5



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 43

A
genda Item

 5



Commercial in confidence

P
age 44

A
genda Item

 5



Commercial in confidence

P
age 45

A
genda Item

 5



Commercial in confidence

P
age 46

A
genda Item

 5



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

P
age 47

A
genda Item

 5

http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/industries/public-sector/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/industries/public-sector/local-government/


Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 48

A
genda Item

 5

https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/insights/report-key-challenges-in-local-audit-accounting/
https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/insights/report-key-challenges-in-local-audit-accounting/


Commercial in confidence

P
age 49

A
genda Item

 5

https://committees.parliament.uk/writtenevidence/118580/pdf/


Commercial in confidence

P
age 50

A
genda Item

 5

https://www.publicfinance.co.uk/news/2022/12/backlogs-hinder-recovery-local-audit-performance
https://committees.parliament.uk/writtenevidence/118580/pdf/


Commercial in confidence

A 

P
age 51

A
genda Item

 5

https://committees.parliament.uk/publications/40932/documents/199432/default/
https://committees.parliament.uk/publications/40932/documents/199432/default/


Commercial in confidence

P
age 52

A
genda Item

 5

https://publications.parliament.uk/pa/cm5803/cmselect/cmpubacc/995/report.html


Commercial in confidence

P
age 53

A
genda Item

 5

https://educationhub.blog.gov.uk/2023/09/04/new-guidance-on-raac-in-education-settings/
https://educationhub.blog.gov.uk/2023/09/04/new-guidance-on-raac-in-education-settings/
https://www.nao.org.uk/press-releases/condition-of-school-buildings-and-dfe-sustainability-overview/
https://www.nao.org.uk/press-releases/condition-of-school-buildings-and-dfe-sustainability-overview/


Commercial in confidence

     

P
age 54

A
genda Item

 5

https://www.hymans.co.uk/media/uploads/LGPS_2022_Valuation_-_the_big_picture.pdf?utm_source=press+release&utm_medium=press+release&utm_campaign=Valuations
https://www.hymans.co.uk/media/uploads/LGPS_2022_Valuation_-_the_big_picture.pdf?utm_source=press+release&utm_medium=press+release&utm_campaign=Valuations


Commercial in confidence

P
age 55

A
genda Item

 5

https://www.cipfa.org/protecting-place-and-planet/sustainability-reporting


Commercial in confidence

P
age 56

A
genda Item

 5

https://www.lgcplus.com/finance/exclusive-call-to-write-off-two-to-three-billion-send-deficit-26-10-2021/
https://www.lgcplus.com/services/children/unsustainable-send-services-cannot-continue-as-finance-probe-begins-24-06-2022/
https://www.lgcplus.com/services/children/exclusive-almost-two-thirds-of-send-services-expected-to-get-deficit-support-27-09-2022/


 

 
 

FPV/23/118 
DCC Audit Committee 
27th November 2023 
 
Report of the Director of Finance  
Internal Audit Update Report for 2023/24 
Please note that the following recommendations are subject to consideration and 
determination by the Committee before taking effect.  

1) Recommendations:  
 
That the Committee reviews and considers: 

i. the current assurance opinion. 
ii. that members review and consider the performance of Devon Audit Partnership 

during the year. 
iii. that members review and consider the outcomes of the work completed. 

 
The key objective of Internal Audit is to provide assurance to Members, Leadership Group 
and the Director of Finance (as the Council’s “section 151 responsible officer”), on the 
adequacy and security of those systems on which the County Council relies for its internal 
control, both financial and management. 
 
This work and the continuing contribution of Devon Audit Partnership to both risk 
management and anti-fraud arrangements within the Council, lead to an opinion that the 
Council continues to have an effective framework of control which provides reasonable 
assurance regarding the effective, efficient and economic achievement of its objectives.  
 
2) Background / Introduction 
 
The attached report provides an update on the opinion of the Council’s Internal Audit 
Service (Devon Audit Partnership) and describes the progress against the internal audit 
plans for 2023/24 that were approved by the Audit Committee in February 2023.  
 
3) Main Body / Proposal 
 
The attached report provides an update on the opinion of the Council’s Internal Audit 
Service (Devon Audit Partnership) and describes the progress against the internal audit 
plans for 2023/24 that were approved by the Audit Committee in February 2023.  
 
This work and the continuing contribution of Devon Audit Partnership to both risk 
management and anti-fraud arrangements within the Council, lead to an opinion that the 
Council continues to have an effective framework of control which provides reasonable 
assurance regarding the effective, efficient and economic achievement of its objectives.  
 
4) Options / Alternatives  
 
Not Applicable 
 

Page 57

Agenda Item 6



 

 
 

5) Consultations / Representations / Technical Data 
 
This report has been agreed with DCC SLT. 
 
6) Strategic Plan:  
 
There are no strategic plan issues associated with this report.  
 
7) Financial Considerations:  
 
There are no direct Financial Considerations issues associated with this report. 
 
8) Legal Consideration:  
 
There are no specific Legal Considerations or issues associated with this report.  
 
9) Environmental Impact Considerations (Including Climate Change):  
 
There are no specific Environmental Impact Considerations or issues associated with this 
report.  
 
10) Equality Considerations:  
 
There are no specific Equality considerations associated with this report  

 
11) Risk Management Considerations:  
 
There are no specific Risk Management considerations associated with this report  
 
12) Public Health Impact:  
 
There is no specific impact on Public Health in connection with this report.  
 
13) Summary/Conclusions/Reasons for Recommendations:  
 
Reasons for reviewing the report and information within it are linked to the Committees 
Terms of Refence and those relevant to this meeting. 
 
That the Committee reviews and considers: 

i. the current assurance opinion. 
ii. that members review and consider the performance of Devon Audit Partnership 

during the year. 
iii. that members review and consider the outcomes of the work completed. 

 
Angie Sinclair  
Director of Finance and Public Value 
 
 

Page 58

Agenda Item 6



 

 
 

Electoral Divisions: All 
 
Local Government Act 1972: List of background papers 
Nil  
 
Contact for enquiries: 
Name: Ken Johnson 
Tel No: (01392) 382528 
 

Page 59

Agenda Item 6





 
 

Internal Audit 
 
Audit Committee 
Half-Year Monitoring Report 
2023/2024  
 
Devon County Council 
 
November 2023  
 
Official 

 
 

P
age 61



Contents 

 

  
INTRODUCTION ___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________3 

AUDIT ASSURANCE STATEMENT ____________________________________________________________________________________________________________4 
DCC SUMMARY ASSURANCE MAP___________________________________________________________________________________________________________5 
 
HIGH LEVEL SUMMARY PLAN_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________6 
ADAPTIVE PLAN – AREAS OF REVIEW (PRIORITIES) ____________________________________________________________________________________________7 

PROGRESS AGAINST PLAN_________________________________________________________________________________________________________________8 
INVESTIGATIONS AND IRREGULARITIES ______________________________________________________________________________________________________9 

CUSTOMER VALUE _______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________10 

PUBLIC SECTOR INTERNAL AUDIT STANDARDS (PSIAS) _______________________________________________________________________________________10 

APPENDIX 1 - SUMMARY OF AUDIT REPORTS AND FINDINGS FROM JUNE TO SEPTEMBER 2023 (SINCE LAST AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETING) ______________11 

APPENDIX 2 - DEFINITIONS ________________________________________________________________________________________________________________23 

APPENDIX 3 – AUDIT AUTHORITY ______________________________________________________________________________________________ 24 
APPENDIX 4 – AUDIT, RISK & COUNTER FRAUD INTEGRATION PLAN   ______________________________________________________                25 
 

Devon Audit Partnership Confidentiality and Disclosure Clause 
The Devon Audit Partnership has been formed under a joint committee arrangement comprising of 
Plymouth, Torbay, Devon, Mid Devon, North Devon, Torridge, South Hams and West Devon councils.  
We aim to be recognised as a high-quality assurance service provider in the public sector.  We work 
with our partners by providing a professional internal audit service that will assist them in meeting their 
challenges, managing their risks and achieving their goals.  In carrying out our work we are required to 
comply with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards along with other best practice and professional 
standards.  The Partnership is committed to providing high quality, professional customer services to 
all; if you have any comments or suggestions on our service, processes or standards, the Head of 
Partnership would be pleased to receive them at tony.d.rose @devon.gov.uk  

This report is protectively marked in accordance with the Government 
Security Classifications. It is accepted that issues raised may well need 
to be discussed with other officers within the Council, the report itself 
should only be copied/circulated/disclosed to anyone outside of the 
organisation in line with the organisation’s disclosure policies.  

This report is prepared for the organisation’s use.  We can take no 
responsibility to any third party for any reliance they might place upon it. 

P
age 62

mailto:tony.d.rose@devon.gov.uk


Official 
 

  3  

Introduction 
There has been much change to the Senior Leadership Team across the Council, and this has come with an increased scrutiny over policy and procedures in 
place across many services. There has been an increase in positive engagement from staff across the Council and we are being alerted to issues where 
control weaknesses may exist.  This has informed our audit work over the last 5-6 months.  From our interactions with SLT we know that the number of 
actions arising from our audit work need further prioritisation to ensure that they can be achieved, notably at present in the Childrens and Young Peoples 
Service. We will continue to work across services to help prioritise those actions that are most urgent and achievable.   
To ensure progress is being made to mitigate risks on those pieces of audit work that achieved Limited Assurance during the first half of 23/24, it is our 
intention to work with the relevant service area and carry out further testing during the last quarter of the year to progress and inform the end of year opinion.  
It is important to note that our assurance work reviews the process in place which often lends us to look back and then report at a point in time. Within our 
work we ensure that we also look forward at any planned changes whether they are in progress or at the development stage. It is clear from our work to date 
that the Council are taking forward a number of key changes across a number of services which should have a positive impact on risk and controls.     
Working closely with our Risk Management team, we strive to ensure that we are reviewing the right areas of the Council at the right time to increase the 
likelihood of success and to be more resilient to change and challenges as they arise. Consideration of the Council’s Strategic and Corporate Plan is vital 
when planning our work to support the Council in its vision to “manage potential opportunities and threats in achieving its objectives”.   
This report provides a summary of the performance against the Internal Assurance plan to date for the 2023/24 financial year, highlighting the key areas of 
work undertaken and summarising our main findings and recommendations aimed at improving controls where our work has been finalised. 
The key objectives of the Devon Audit Partnership (DAP) have been to provide assurance to Devon County Council on the adequacy, security and 
effectiveness of the systems and controls operating across the Council and to provide advice and assurance to managers and staff. The Internal Assurance 
plan for 2023/24 was presented to, and approved by, the Audit Committee in February 2023. The following report and appendices set out the position to 
November 2023. 
The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards require the Head of Internal Audit to prepare a report providing an opinion at the end of each year that can be used 
by the organisation to inform its governance statement, this report provides a position statement on the progress towards that. The level of risk associated 
with each of the areas in Appendix 1 has been determined either from the Local Authority’s Risk Register (LARR), or the Audit Needs Assessment (ANA) 
carried out at the planning phase. Where the audit was undertaken at the request of the client it has not been risk assessed.   
Expectations of the Audit Committee from this report 
Members are requested to consider the opinion statement within this report; the completion of audit work against the plan;
Any audit findings provided, and the overall performance and customer satisfaction on audit delivery. 

In review of these, the Audit Committee are required to consider the assurance provided alongside that of Corporate Risk 
Management and satisfy themselves from this assurance that the internal control framework continues to be maintained at 
an adequate level to mitigate risks and inform the Executive for governance requirements. 
 

Tony Rose, Head of Devon Audit Partnership

P
age 63



Official 
 

  4  

Audit Assurance Statement 
 

The above assurance opinion is at this half-way point in the year 
and is subject to change as we move through the second half of 
2023/24. There are a higher number of limited assurance reviews 
to date when compared to previous years and this could have an 
impact on the assurance opinion given at the end of the financial 
year. We are also of the opinion that if a particular service area 
has a significant number of limited reviews, we will provide a 
separate assurance opinion of limited overall to that service area.   
Where weaknesses have been identified management have 
agreed these findings and have either agreed the 
recommendations or accepted the associated risks.   
Where management actions have been agreed, as appropriate we shall undertake follow up work to ensure that the identified risks have been mitigated.   
Leadership have been provided with details of Internal Audit’s opinion on each audit review carried out in 2023/24. All audit reports include an action plan 
which identifies responsible officers, and target dates, to address control issues identified during a review. If significant weaknesses have been identified in 
specific areas, these will need to be considered by the Council in preparing its Annual Governance Statement for the Statement of Accounts for 2023/24.   
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

Internal Control Framework   
The control environment comprises the Council’s policies, procedures and operational 
systems including processes in place to establish and monitor the achievement of the 
Council’s objectives; facilitate policy and decision making; ensure economical, effective 
and efficient use of resources, compliance with established policy, procedure, law and 
regulation; and safeguard the Council’s assets and interests from losses. Core financial 
and administrative systems were reviewed by Internal Audit. 

Risk Management 
Risk Management process at 
strategic and operational levels 
remain in place. The production 
of a DCC Strategic Plan allows 
the new and existing risks to be 
directly linked to the achievement 
of the core objectives.    

Governance Arrangements 
Governance arrangements have 
been considered in all our audits 
but with opportunities to improve 
consistency or alignment to 
business need. We will continue 
to review the improvements to 
governance and control 
arrangements in 2022/23. 

Performance 
Management 
Performance is 
subject to 
monitoring at 
management 
level. 

Substantial 
Assurance 

A sound system of governance, risk management and control 
exists, with internal controls operating effectively and being 
consistently applied to support the achievement of objectives in the 
area audited. 

Limited 
Assurance 

Significant gaps, weaknesses or non-compliance were identified. 
Improvement is required to the system of governance, risk management 
and control to effectively manage risks to the achievement of objectives in 
the area audited. 

Reasonable 
Assurance 

There is a generally sound system of governance, risk 
management and control in place. Some issues, non-compliance or 
scope for improvement were identified which may put at risk the 
achievement of objectives in the area audited. 

No 
Assurance 

Immediate action is required to address fundamental gaps, weaknesses or 
non-compliance identified. The system of governance, risk management 
and control is inadequate to effectively manage risks to the achievement of 
objectives in the area audited. 

Overall, based on work performed during 23/24 to date and 
our experience from the previous year’s audit, the Head of 
Internal Audit’s Opinion is of “Reasonable Assurance” on the 
adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control framework 
within the County Council. 

P
age 64



Official 
 

  5  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DCC Summary Assurance Map

RAG Yr RAG Yr RAG Yr RAG Yr RAG Yr RAG Yr RAG Yr

Risk / Key Objectives / Key Service  Co
re

 sy
st

em
s 

co
nt

ro
ls 

in
c.

 IT
 

sy
st

em
, 

In
pu

t 
pr

oc
es

sin
g 

an
d 

ou
tp

ut
 co

nt
ro

ls
Fr

au
d 

an
d 

er
ro

r 
pr

ev
en

tio
n

au
th

or
isa

tio
n,

 
su

pe
rv

iso
n 

an
d 

se
gr

eg
at

io
n

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 &
 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
3r

d 
Pa

rt
y 

re
sil

ia
nc

e?

Bu
sin

es
s 

co
nt

in
ui

ty
 in

cl.
 

Di
sa

st
er

 
St

ra
te

gi
es

 a
nd

 
bu

sin
es

s p
la

ns
 

in
c.

 

Sp
ar

e 
- 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l /
 

M
on

ito
rin

g,
 

re
co

nc
ilia

tio
n,

 
Fu

nc
tio

na
l &

 
Se

rv
ice

 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
Q

ua
lit

y 
co

nt
ro

l 
ch

ec
ks

 (H
&

S,
 

In
fo

 
Se

cu
rit

y 
in

c I
T 

sy
st

em
s &

 
ph

ys
ica

l
Go

ve
rn

an
ce

 
st

ru
ct

ur
es

 a
nd

 
pr

oc
es

se
s (

in
c.

 
Co

rp
or

at
e 

ris
k 

m
an

ag
em

en
t/

a
ss

ur
an

ce

Sp
ar

e 
-

Key Financial Systems
KFS - Income Collection 23/24 G A G G G A G
KFS - Treasury Management 23/24 G G G G G G G G G
KFS - Debtors 23/24 G G G A G A G G G A G
KFS - CHAPS Approval Process G G G G n/a G n/a n/a G G n/a n/a G
KFS - Creditors G G G G G G G G

Children's and Young Peoples Futures

CYPF - Consultant Process for Schools G G G G G G G G G G G G
CYPF - Adopt SW G G G G G G G G
CYPF - Payments to Independent Placements G G G A A A A G G A G A
CYPF & IASC - Transitions to Adulthood - Financial Impact A A A A A A A A
CYPF - Financial Arrangements of EHCP Payments to Independent Schools G A G G A A R G G A

Integrated Adults Social Care
IASC - Review Programme / Care Assessment 18-64 A A A A A n/a A A A n/a A A A

Digitial Transformation and Business Support
D&TS - Information Technology Asset Management A G A G R A A A A

Public Health, Communities and Prosperity
PHC&P - Sexual Health - Governance & Risk Management G G G G G G G A G
PHC&P - Emergency Asylum Hotel Handbook G G G G

Climate Change, Environment and Transport

CCET - Exeter ERF Annual Reconcilation 22/23 A G G G G G G ##
#

G

People and Culture
HR - Off Payroll Working G G G A G G A G G G G ##

#

HR - Children's Services Use of iTrent G A A G A G A A G A A ##
#

In
sp

ec
tio

n 
- 

O
fs

te
d,

 C
Q

C,
 

IC
O

, H
SE

HM
RC

 T
ax

 a
nd

 
Re

ve
nu

e

Sp
ar

e 
- O

th
er

 ?

Ex
te

rn
al

 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
te

st
in

g 
- e

.g
. 

se
cu

rit
y,

 
3r

d 
Pa

rt
y 

as
su

ra
nc

e 
le

tt
er

s

Co
ns

ul
ta

nt
 

re
vi

ew
s

St
ra

te
gi

c 
pa

rt
ne

rs
 

as
su

ra
nc

e 
re

po
rt

s i
nc

. 

sp
ar

e

In
te

rn
al

 a
ud

it 
as

sig
nm

en
ts

Regulators

Ex
te

rn
al

 a
ud

it

Identifying risks and improvement actions. Implementing controls. Reporting Assurance oversight, management and financial policies, Independent challenge & audit. Reporting on assurance. Audit of assurance Legal, Government other inspection and 
Internal Control Measures Management controls

Ex
te

rn
al

 
ac

cr
ed

ita
tio

n/
C

er
tif

ica
tio

n 
(IS

O
 2

70
01

)

Corporate Governance / Audit Committee

Senior Management
Risks / key objectives / Key services are taken from the Corporate Plan, Risk Register and 
audit universe with a focus on the higher risks and audit needs assessed feeding 
through into the audit plan. 

Business Operation - 1st line Financial, Corporate and Governance - 2nd line Independent Assurance - 3rd line

P
age 65



Official 
 

  6  

 
High Level Summary Audit Plan – 2023-24 

 Corporate/ 
Strategic Risks 

and Projects 

 Client and Audit 
Governance 

 

 
Adult Care & Health  Children’s Services  

 Climate Change, 
Environment & 

Transport  
 

Public Health, 
Communities & 

Prosperity 
   

 

Pr
io

rit
is

ed
 R

is
k 

A
re

as
 

 

Supported Living Tender 

Impact Assessments 

Service Closure 

ACH System Replacement 
Project 

CQC – Assurance of Adults 
Social Care 

ICB Savings Plan 

Review of S75 
Arrangements 

Direct Payments – System 
Development 

Liberty Protection 
Safeguards 

Commissioning – Best Value 

 

Children’s Services Social 
Care – Ofsted Monitoring 

Financial Arrangements of 
EHCP Payments to 

Independent Schools 

Payments to Independent 
Placements – Social Care 

Payment by Results (Used 
to be Troubled Families) 

Consultant Process for 
Schools Forum Financial 

Arrangements 

Financial Intervention Panel 
Schools (FIPS) 

Direct Payments – Virtual 
Wallet 

MASH IT System (F/Up) 

Direct Payments (F-Up) 

 
 

Lack of capacity or capability 
to respond effectively to 
highway safety related 

issues 

Lack of capacity or capability 
to effectively respond to 
extreme weather events 

Waste Strategy 

Transport – Impact of Covid-
19 

Sustainable Urban Drainage 
System 

Section 106 Agreements 

Bio Diversity Net Gain 

Commuted Sums 

 

Prosperity: 

Mobility Aids 

Learn Devon 

External Funding with 
Community Renewal Funds 

Public Health:  

Budget Pressures 

Business Continuity 

Fund led Audit 

Communities: 

 Asylum Seekers 

Domestic Abuse 

Modern Slavery 

Incoming Serious Violence 

  

Audit Committee 

Corporate Governance 

Follow Up Reviews 

Audit Planning and 
Coordination 

Contingency 

 

A
da

pt
iv

e 
Pl

an
 

  

Unscheduled Resource, 
Options: 

OT & SW Recruitment  

Community Services  

 

 Unscheduled Resource, 
Options: 

Children’s Homes 

Compliance with the Care 
Act Requirement 

 Unscheduled Resource, 
Options: 

Tree Management System – 
Ash Dieback 

Fees & Charges 

 Unscheduled Resource, 
Options: 

Public Health – Impact of 
Covid 

Prosperity - Animal Disease 
Emergency/Contingency 

Plans 

 

 

Budget Targets – Delivery 
of Savings/Accountability 

SEND – Savings Review 

People Strategy 

Spend Analysis – Eight 
Point Plan 

Financial Resilience of Key 
Suppliers – Business 

Continuity 

Best Value 

 Governance & 
Commissioning of 

Corporate Contracts 

Single Sign-On 

Lone Worker Absence 
Devices 

Sickness/Absence 
Management 

Climate Change 

Core Systems 
Replacement -Finest – 

CareFirst 

 Counter Fraud 

 

Key Financial Systems (Material Systems) - Payroll, Creditors, Debtors, Income Collection, Bank Reconciliation, Treasury Management, Main Accounting System Inc interface systems & 
reconciliations.   

            
Grants - Troubled Families, Grants Out -Governance and monitoring   
            

C
or

e 
A

ss
ur

an
ce

 

ICT  – Disaster Recovery, Firewalls, Access Controls, IT Asset Management, Capacity & Availability, ICT Cyber Security – Vulnerability Management   
             

 

P
age 66



Official 
 

  7  

Adaptive Plan – areas of review 
(priorities) 
 
Key:  

• Initial priorities 
• Revised priorities 

 
Corporate and Strategic 
• Budget Targets – Delivery of Savings/Accountability 
• SEND – Savings Review 
• People Strategy 
• Financial Resilience of Key Suppliers – Business 

Continuity 
• Governance & Commissioning of Corporate 

Contracts 
• Budgeting Processes 
• Barclaycard / Procurement Card Spend 
• Safer Recruitment 
• Single Sign-on – pause until 24/25 due to on-

going work in this area 
• Lone Worker Absence Devices – on hold until 

24/25 to allow the devices to be procured and 
training to be given 

• Sickness/Absence Management – no longer a 
priority 

• Expenses 
• Climate Change 
• Core Systems Replacement – Finest - CareFirst 
Adult Care and Health 
• Supported Living Tender  
• Impact Assessment 
• Services Consultation Process (Service Closure) 
• ACH System Replacement Project 
• CQC – Assurance of Adults Social Care 
• ICB Savings Plan 
• Review of S75 Arrangements – moved to 24/25 

due to an external review currently underway 
• Direct Payments – System Development 
• Liberty Protection Standard – on hold until after 

the next General Election 

• CHC F/Up 
• OT and SW Recruitment 
• Community Services 
• Effective replacement care offer to avoid carer 

breakdown 
• Transitions – Project Board 
• Review Programme 18-64 
• Direct Payments – (F/Up) 

Children’s Services  
• Children’s Services Social Care – Ofsted Monitoring 
• Financial Arrangements of EHCP Payments to 

Independent Schools 
• Payments to Independent Placements – Social 

Care 
• Payment by Results (Used to be Troubled Families) 
• Consultant Process for Schools Forum Financial 

Arrangements 
• Financial Intervention Panel (FIPS) 
• Direct Payments – Virtual Wallet 
• MASH IT System (F/Up) 
• Direct Payments – (F/Up) 
• Children’s Homes 
• Compliance with the Care Act Requirements 
• CS Direct Payments Spend Analysis – (F/Up) 

Public Health, Community & Prosperity 
• Mobility Aids 
• Learn Devon 
• External Funding with Community Renewal Funds 
• Budget Pressures – no longer a priority 
• Business Continuity – no longer a priority 
• Fund Led Audit – no longer a priority 
• Sexual Health 
• PHSE 
• Asylum Seekers (Migration & Resettlement)  – no 

longer a priority look to review in 24/25 
• Domestic Abuse 
• Modern Slavery 
• Incoming Serious Violence 
• Impact of Covid – No longer a priority 

• Animal Disease Emergency/Contingency Plans – 
no longer a priority, plans tested in real time last 
year. 

Climate Change, Environment & Transport 
• Lack of capacity or capability to respond effectively 

to highway safety related issues 
• Lack of capacity or capability to effectively respond 

to extreme weather events 
• Waste Strategy – this will be included within the 

Section 106 audit 
• Transport – Impact of Covid-19 – No longer a 

priority 
• Sustainable Urban Drainage System 
• Section 106 Agreements 
• Bio Diversity Net Gain 
• Commuted Sums 
• Tree Management System – Ash Dieback – No 

longer a priority 
• Fees and Charges 
• Planning Team Processes 
• SEND Transport – (F/Up) 
Digital Transformation & Business Support 
• Disaster Recovery 
• Firewalls 
• Access Controls 
• IT Asset Management 
• Capacity and Availability – moved to 24/25 plan to 

allow capacity to undertake the limited 
assurance follow-ups 

• ICT Cyber Security – Vulnerability Management 
• Cyber Security (Focus Governance Arrangements 

22-23) – (F/Up) 
• Change Management – Compliance with Internal 

Policy and Procedure – (F/Up) 
• Project Management 22-23 – (F/Up) 
• Cyber Security 21-22 – (F/Up) 
• Data Storage – (F/Up) 
• Shadow IT – (F/Up) 
• Vulnerability Management – (F/Up) 
• Data Protection – (F/Up) 
 

P
age 67



Official 
 

  8  

Progress Against Plan 
There has been a growing trend in the sector towards more flexible audit plans 
to enable internal audit to be more responsive to changing risks, in turn 
maximising resource focus to clients’ needs as and when needed – Agile 
Auditing.  This principle looks set to continue and has several benefits with ever 
changing priority and related risks. Key benefits provide for: 
 

• Reduction in non-productive resource planning. 
• Improved opportunity to keep plan aligned to current risks within Service 

Areas and as a whole for the Authority. 
• More effective and timely pre-audit engagement with Service Leads. 
• Greater and more regular discussion with client leads – supporting 

current risk and work priorities.  
• The current trend for more flexible audit plans – agile auditing. 
• Experience that plans change regularly. 
• Changes in external risk drivers are more easily picked up in audit 

assurance needs. 
 
Our audit plans are always built around the Risks identified through Risk 
Management, audit needs and perceptions of current issues and in discussion 
with client management. The audit resource delivery envelope has been set to 
provide opportunity for greater depth of coverage and further extension of 
counter fraud work.  
Our approach is to scope, schedule and resource plans throughout the year 
with Service Leads in an agile way, incorporating risk changes as necessary. 
Resource allocation will be decided based on need at this time. 
We endeavour to ensure that sufficient coverage across the Council is 
maintained to ensure that we can provide an inclusive end of year annual 
assurance opinion.  
 
The positive engagement from staff across the Council has enabled us, as at 
20th October 2023, to have 32 pieces of work finalised for the 23/24 financial 
year and a further 52 audits in progress. We plan (subject to changes in risk 
and priorities) to complete a further 30 audits before the end of the financial 
year.   

 
 
Value Added 
We know that it is important that the internal audit services seek to "add value" 
whenever it can. We obtained feedback from those audited during the year to 
date who considered we were able to add value by: 
 

• Providing objective and relevant assurance. 
• Contributing to the effectiveness and efficiency of the governance, risk 

management and internal control processes. 
• Linking across Risk, Counter Fraud and Audit to respond to issues that 

occur. 
 
 
 

30

32

52

Planned for remainder of year

Finalised

Audits in progress

0 10 20 30 40 50 60

Audit Progress 2023/24

P
age 68



Official 
 

  9  

 
 

Investigations and Irregularities 
 
To date, during 2023/24 financial year, Devon Audit Partnership was made aware of 31 irregularities across the Council.  Analysis of the types of investigation 
and the number undertaken is shown in the following table. 
 

 
 
Further detail of the DAP Counter Fraud activity can be found in the Counter Fraud Report provided separately by DAP. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Fraud / Irregularity Summary 
Case 
classification  

Number 
of 

cases  

Summary Details  

Theft / Loss of 
IT equipment  

8 These cases mainly relate to loss or potential theft of mobile phones/laptops. 

Tenders & 
Contracts 

0 None. 

Financial 
Irregularities 

0 None. 

Employee 
Conduct 

1 This case relates to a possible misuse of position and is being investigated. 

Blue Badge 
Misuse 

22 Customer Services record instances where Blue Badge have been misused, these are passed to DAP and recorded. DAP 
Fraud team review and investigate where appropriate.  

P
age 69



Official 
 

  10  

 
Customer Value 
 
Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS)             

                                                                               
Conformance - Devon Audit Partnership conforms to the requirements of the PSIAS for its internal audit 
activity. The purpose, authority and responsibility of the internal audit activity is defined in our internal audit 
charter, consistent with the Definition of Internal Auditing, the Code of Ethics and the Standards.  
Our internal audit charter was approved by senior management and the Audit Committee in February 20. This 
is supported through DAP self-assessment of conformance with Public Sector Internal Audit Standards & 
Local Government Application note.  
Quality Assessment - Through external assessment in December 2021 ‘DAP is continuing to operate in 
conformance with the standards.  External Assessment provides independent assurance against the Institute 
of Internal Auditors (IIA) Quality Assessment & Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS).  
The Head of Devon Audit Partnership also maintains a quality assessment process which includes review by 
audit managers of all audit work. The quality assessment process and improvement are supported by a 
development programme.   
Improvement Programme - DAP maintains a rolling development plan of improvements to the service and 
customers. All recommendations of the external assessment of PSIAS and quality assurance were included in this development plan and have been 
completed. This will be further embedded with revision of our internal quality process through peer review.  
 
Customer Service Excellence 
DAP maintains accreditation by G4S Assessment Services of the CSE standard during the year.  We have had some very complimentary feedback of where 
our team have been able to add value to the Council and these may be found upon our webpage.  The chart on the right of this page summarises the customer 
satisfaction results received to date during 2023/24. 

Inherent Limitations 
The opinions contained within this report are based on our examination of restricted samples of transactions / records and our discussions with officers 
responsible for the processes reviewed. 

73%

24%
Very 
Satisfied

Satisfied

Adequate

Poor

Overall Customer Survey 
Satisfaction 97%

P
age 70

https://www.devonaudit.gov.uk/why-choose-dap/customer-satisfaction/


Official 
 

  11  

Appendix 1 - Summary of audit reports and findings from September to October 2023 (since last Audit 
Committee meeting) 
Integrated Adult Social Care  

Audit Report Risk Area / Audit Entity Residual Risk / Audit Comment 
The following audits from 2023/24 have been completed and finalised since September 

Review Programme / Care 
Assessments 18-64 
 
Limited Assurance 
 
Status: Final issued 10/11/23 
 
Draft issued 29/09/23 

The general view from the Officers that we met with was positive and that the new "Urgent Intervention and Review Model" 
is the appropriate approach to undertaking a review. Officers we spoke with were passionate about their roles and the 
people of Devon that they support, engaged fully with the audit process and were keen for their views to be listened to. 
 
The number of reviews completed is significantly below target.  As at 14/08/2023 only 1684 of 7992, 21% (18-64 and 65+) 
have been completed as per the monitoring dashboard. Based on a Q1 analysis, 46% of reduced costs relate to over 65s. 
Also, 55% of reviews completed related to those clients over 65. 
 
From reviewing the Q1 analysis produced by Officers, neither CHSCT (Community Health and Social Care Team), CDP 
(County Disability Team) or County Teams are reaching targets. Therefore, it is unlikely that the targeted level of reviews 
or the associated targeted budget savings of £6m, due to reduced costs following care reviews, will be achieved in 23/24. 
 
This piece of worked involved a high level of discussion with officers which has identified several obstacles/barriers to 
meeting the targets of reviews completed and the reduction of costs, details of which are highlighted below: 

• Structure and allocation or resources.  
• Availability of required suitably capable resources including nature of Team Manager role. 
• Culture and behaviour of the organisation and individuals. 
• Significant variety and volume of work carried out by the Community Teams. 
• Lack of quality control of reviews. 
• Lack of focus on 18-64 rather than 65+ 

 
There are also areas where the data quality monitoring and reporting of reviews and financial outcomes could be improved. 
 
It was highlighted by Officers, that for the required improvements regarding completing effective reviews, there is a need 
for a cohesive message and view from the top. Management should consider the need to improve efficiencies, 
effectiveness and consistency in ways of working before increasing resources.  
 
 
 
Overall Management Response 

P
age 71



Official 
 

  12  

Integrated Adult Social Care  
Audit Report Risk Area / Audit Entity Residual Risk / Audit Comment 

 
All findings have been agreed and we are working with our teams to ensure they are actioned between now and 
the end of June 2024.   Targets have been re-set with a stronger focus on prioritising the right “planned proactive” 
reviews where there is a realistic prospect of promoting independence and therefore a reduction in costs.  
Additional resource has been provided to support Team Managers. 
 
The anticipated savings delivery from the review programme is monitored regularly within the service and 
reported to SLT and Transformation Board monthly, we are estimating the risk to planned savings delivery as 
being £1m in 2023-24. 
 
 

Other work on-going: 
• Governance and Assurance Board for the Care First system replacement, Transitions, Community Services and Care Quality Commission - to provide 

advice on risk and controls through attendance at meetings. 
 
 

No audits have been completed and finalised since September 
Other work in-progress:  

• Sexual Health 
• Modern Slavery 
• Domestic Abuse 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Public Health, Communities & Prosperity  
Audit Report Risk Area / Audit Entity Residual Risk / Audit Comment 

P
age 72



Official 
 

  13  

 
 
Children and Young People’s Futures 

Audit Report Risk Area / Audit Entity Residual Risk / Audit Comment 
The following audits from 2023/24 have been completed and finalised since September  

 
Children’s Services use of 
iTrent 
 
Limited Assurance 
 
Status: Final issued 02/11/23 
 
Draft issued 16/06/23 

 
As part of our testing to provide assurance that iTrent is being adequately used, discussions were had with staff in HR, 
Children's Social Work Academy, Children's Services Project Management team, Children’s Social Care Business Support 
Managers and the Finance team within Children's Services.  We also undertook a range of sample testing of HR/Payroll 
data, with some of our testing focussed on employees who had been confirmed as working within Children's Social Care. 
 
Work is continuing in HR and the Social Work Academy to assist Children's Services by providing ongoing manager 
training and support, supplementing the comprehensive suite of user-friendly iTrent guidance available to all employees 
and managers via Inside Devon.  However, within Children’s Services, there has been a high turnover of staff with more 
agency managers than some other areas within DCC and as such, this may increase the risk of inadequate knowledge of 
iTrent requirements within the service.   
 
In most areas, our testing found that iTrent is being used to record, request and authorise data in accordance with the 
Council’s policy and procedures, however there are areas of concern where updates are not being managed appropriately 
or incorrect staffing structures have been recorded, which could mean managers may not be permitted to access and 
authorise updates for their employees, such as recording sickness, annual leave and expense claims. 
 
As iTrent is reliant on the information entered into the system, it is difficult to evidence or quantify the information that may 
be omitted, increasing the risk of incorrect payments made to employees, and could result in inaccurate reporting and 
monitoring of staff. 
 
Overall Management Response 
 
All findings have been agreed and we are working with our teams to ensure they are actioned between now and 
the end of January 2024. Reminders of the use of iTrent will be issued to all managers to ensure correct 
completion of the necessary forms for recording sickness and leavers information. Managers will be asked to 
demonstrate the use of iTrent correctly in their 1-2-1’s.   
 
 
 
 

  

P
age 73



Official 
 

  14  

Transitions to Adult – Financial 
Impact 
 
Limited Assurance 
 
Status: Final issued 10/11/23 
 
Draft issued 08/09/23 
 
 
 
 

Our audit has concluded that there are no documented processes or written guidance, surrounding the responsibilities to 
ensure Children’s Services are informed that a transitions assessment has taken place.  Furthermore, there are no current 
reports run which can identify whether care and support payments are being made by both services for the same 
individual.  
 
There are some controls in place, such as a default end date for the Children’s Service Agreement meaning the support 
payments will automatically stop in line with the young person’s 18th birthday, however this does not apply to all young 
people in receipt of Children’s Services support, such as those placed in care, where payments will continue until notified 
otherwise. 
 
Reports showing all children and young people with an active Children’s Service Agreement, are discussed between 
Finance staff from Children’s and Adult Services each month, however they are dependent on social care teams providing 
updated information in the first instance.  There are fortnightly checks in place for high cost ‘Children in Care’ placements 
which also identifies where payments are being made for young people over the age of 18 (including those that can be 
paid in accordance with legislation, such as care leavers remaining with the same foster carer), though again, its 
effectiveness is reliant on information being adequately shared at service level. 
 
Whilst we have been made aware of examples where Children’s Service Agreements continued with payments being 
made after a transitions assessment had been made by Adult Services (in some cases with an overlap of payments), there 
is inadequate data available to identify the total amount of overpayments created.  In addition, Corporate accounting 
system limitations and insufficient information provided to, and held by, the Council’s Debt Recovery Team, means we 
have been unable to quantify any outstanding debt or total write-offs which have occurred because of an overlap or delay 
in ending Children’s Service payments. 
 
In some cases, the support provided by Adult Services is less than the Children’s Services costs paid for an individual, 
particularly with placements for Children in Care, so a timely transition is required to reduce potential overspend.  Our 
understanding is that ‘better transition planning’ is being considered as part of the Transforming Transitions Project. 
 
Overall Management Responses 
 
All findings have been agreed and we are working with our teams to ensure they are actioned between now and 
the end of November 2023.  An Operations and Finance (Transitions to Adulthood) Group has been established to 
track the completion of transfers for young people moving from Children’s Social Care to Adult Social Care.   A 
new dashboard has been implemented by Adult Social Care providing centralised information about young 
people transitioning to Adult Services. 
 
Finance have implemented an accompanying letter for invoice amounts above £1,000 explaining the detail behind 
the overpayment.  In addition action has been taken to remind staff of DCC’s Code of Practice for Income 
Management and Financial Regulations. 

P
age 74



Official 
 

  15  

 
 
Financial Arrangements of 
EHCP Payments to 
Independent Schools 
 
Limited Assurance 
 
Status: Final issued 14/11/23 
 
Draft issued 14/09/23 

This audit focused on the planning and review process of EHCPs and the associated payments and budget monitoring to 
independent providers.  
 
The Council have a backlog of overdue cases at various stages of the EHCP process. Areas that need addressing are the 
stage of whether to issue an EHCP or not, the EHCP implementation stage and the annual reviews. The service has 
developed impressive PowerBi reports to monitor the overdue cases, however, with such a large backlog the Council is at 
risk reputationally for delaying the support of a child/young person. 
  
Responses from external stakeholders at the EHCP request and assessment stages are inconsistent. EHCPs themselves 
are written inconsistently as are the annual review reports. With annual review reports written by individual schools and 
case workers, inconsistency is to be expected, however, not to the scale we have assessed. 
  
The Council pay for a child/young person to attend their placement full time. There are opportunities for significant savings 
to be made if the Council only paid for how much each individual child/young person attended their placement. Evidence 
of over and underpayments have also been captured after reviewing the Council’s financial reports. 
  
Independent providers are commissioned by each individual caseworker which poses a risk of placements being 
inconsistently assigned. To bring in some consistency the Council should adopt a written Value for Money (VfM) process. 
With costs to independent providers increasing the Council should look at ways of limiting the use of them where 
appropriate whilst maintaining their legal duty to use a provider through parental preference.  
 
Overall Management Response 
 
All findings have been agreed and we are working with our teams to ensure they are actioned between now and 
the end of March 2024.  The SEND Transformation Programme includes a project which is focused on improving 
SEN Statutory Processes and includes a review of the EHC assessment process to identify what is working well, 
any problems and ideas for improvements.   
 
Resources are being identified for a full commissioning review after which options for future commissioning 
strategies and frameworks will be looked at along with the possibility of block contracting.  Work is commencing 
on quality assurance checks.  We are also looking at links across the wider system including transport. 
 
 
 
 

 
Payments to Independent 
Placements - Social Care 

 
Staff within the Social Care Team are experienced and well versed in procedures relating to care planning for individual 
children, with comprehensive plans and reviews recorded adequately and timely on ECLIPSE (the Children's Social Care 

P
age 75



Official 
 

  16  

 
Limited Assurance 
 
Status: Final issued 19/10/23 
 
Draft issued 26/09/23 

system). However, there is no evidence documented to confirm the circulation of the plans to the relevant stakeholders, as 
required within local procedural guidance.  
 
There are processes in place surrounding the commissioning of placement providers under formalised frameworks, 
including pricing negotiations, but there is no current strategy with regards to spot placements outside of the framework 
and for the procurement of additional local providers.  
 
A high impact area of concern relates to the financial risk, with weaknesses identified in the current processes for setting 
up and ending payments to providers, resulting in some providers unnecessarily waiting for payments whilst others are 
being overpaid. Furthermore, there are no mechanisms in place to identify these discrepancies, with errors generally being 
discovered following contact from a provider or noticed by staff whilst working on other aspects of the claim. 
 
Overall Management Response 
 
As reported to Cabinet there are emerging risks within Children and Young People’s Futures with increasing 
numbers of complex placements and continued pressure associated with excessive agency costs.  In response 
additional intensive work and the establishment of a cross council placement taskforce is seeking to address this 
issue at pace.  There has been significant progress in establishing management tiers with the level of interim 
managers reducing by 70% since February 2023 and agency levels by 11% since May.  These activities are 
subject to weekly support and intervention by the Chief Executive and Director of Finance and Public Value 
 

Other work in progress: 
• Financial Intervention Panel for Schools 
• Direct Payment Follow-Up review from 22/23 
• Direct Payments Spend Analysis Follow-Up review from 22/23 
• MASH IT Follow-Up review from 22/23 
• Direct Payments – New System (Virtual Wallet) - to provide advice on risk and controls through attendance at meetings. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Key Financial Systems  

Audit Report Risk Area / Audit Entity Residual Risk / Audit Comment 
The following audits from 2023/24 have been completed and finalised since September  
  

P
age 76



Official 
 

  17  

Key Financial Systems  
Audit Report Risk Area / Audit Entity Residual Risk / Audit Comment 

CHAPS (Clearing House 
Automated Payments System) 
Process 
 
 
Substantial Assurance 
 
Status: Final 

Our review of the CHAPS process found there to be appropriate and robust controls in place to minimise the risk of 
inappropriate or inaccurate CHAPS payments being made.  
 
The ability to process CHAPS payments is suitably restricted to appropriate Officers and payments require three Officers 
to process the payment via the Councils banking system. From our sample of CHAPS payments reviewed we found;  
 

• Payments were supported by the relevant forms and supporting documentation.  
• CHAPS payments correctly/appropriately authorised.  
• CHAPS payments were processed accurately to the correct supplier/recipient.  
• All accounting entries (Journals) were processed accurately. 

 
 
 

 
Debtors 
 
Reasonable Assurance 
 
Status: Final 

 
Based on our testing we consider there to be an appropriate control framework in place for ensuring that debt owed is 
effectively and efficiently collected.  
 
The controls for user account management (i.e., the creation / removal of user accounts) to the debt recovery system 
(ASH) could be improved. However, as ASH is a low-risk system, used by a close-knit team and doesn’t process financial 
transactions, this reduces the impact of inappropriate or unauthorised access to ASH, with our assurance opinion 
reflecting this. User management for FINEST was found to be adequate and is reported in the Main Accounting System 
audit. There are suitable controls in place to reduce the likelihood of inappropriate or inaccurate amendments to the 
debtor system.  
 
The credit notes and debtor invoices tested all followed the expected procedures, although there is the continued risk of 
debtor invoices being raised inappropriately as there is no enforced segregation of duties in the process. Recovery action 
and write-offs were deemed to be appropriate and timely. All debts that are in dispute or supressed show procedures 
were followed, with reports to identify and monitor such debts. Our review did highlight the inconsistent use of the 
instalment plan function in ASH, which could lead to inefficiencies in monitoring on debt on an instalment plan. There is 
now a centralised record of write-offs held in SharePoint to improve recordkeeping. Debts that are referred to the external 
agency for collection are monitored effectively, although further investigation on the use of this external agency may 
produce more success in the collection of debts.  
 

P
age 77



Official 
 

  18  

Key Financial Systems  
Audit Report Risk Area / Audit Entity Residual Risk / Audit Comment 

Positively, it is noted that the fix applied to ASH earlier this year has improved the accuracy of the system in reflecting 
debt position correctly. With the upgrade to ASH which is going live in the coming months, this will further enhance the 
functionality of the system.  
 
The aged debt dashboard continues to be used to monitor the debt position. Using a month-on-month comparison for 
Corporate aged debt between 22/23 and 23/24, 23/24 is showing a higher amount of aged debt. There are two debtors 
with a high level of aged debt (NHS Devon ICB and Persimmon Homes (both of which are being pursued by the County 
Legal team) and if we exclude these figures, the aged debt as a percentage of the rolling year invoice total is 
approximately 1.7%, which is in line with the agreed target (1.9%). 
 

Creditors 
 
Reasonable Assurance 
 
Status: Final 

From our review of the key system controls within FINEST, P2P (OnBase) and payment feeder systems we conclude that 
generally orders and payments made by the Council are effectively controlled.  
 
User access and authorisation to reduce the likelihood of inappropriate access to the creditors system continues to be 
effective.  
 
We found the creation of Creditor entities, within the Finest system, to be suitably restricted. There continues to be no 
established periodic review of duplicate entities, however, it is noted as part of the Future Finance Project, these are 
being assessed as part of the data cleanse.  
 
Based on our sample of payments made via the electronic ordering process, the majority were found to have followed 
expected procedures. The Payments Team have limited involvement in error investigation, but they maintain a record to 
ensure that service areas are promptly notified of rejected payments. Rejected entries are independently investigated, 
with sufficient segregation of duties when re-issuing a failed payment.  
 
One Time Creditor (OTC) payments follow the relevant procedures which are available to all appropriate staff. However, 
it is noted that there was an example of a re-occurring monthly payment using the OTC payment process, and not all 
OTC payments are being coded correctly.  
 
There are three previously agreed management actions which have not progressed by their planned target dates. 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 78



Official 
 

  19  

Key Financial Systems  
Audit Report Risk Area / Audit Entity Residual Risk / Audit Comment 

Income Collection 
 
Reasonable Assurance 
 
Status: Final 

Based on our testing we consider there to be an appropriate control framework in place for ensuring that income is being 
correctly receipted and recorded to the accounting system using CIVICA and FINEST.  
 
There are adequate user account controls for CIVICA. Two management actions in relation to access controls from last 
year’s audit have been implemented, which include a review of accounts with administrator access and a review of recent 
leavers to confirm that they are deactivated from the system.  
 
The Finance Support Team (FST) informed audit that a full review of user roles is not viable due to the capacity and 
resources available.  
 
Adequate controls regarding income collection remain unchanged since the previous audit and continue to show suitable 
levels of risk mitigation. However, as reported previously, there still remains a high value of unallocated income 
transactions which are posted to the FINEST suspense account, which had a balance of £550,469 as of 26 June 2023. It 
is noted that there has been a positive direction of travel in regard to the current balance of the suspense account with a 
reduction of approximately £22,000 between April - June 2023.  
At present, there is still no documented policy / procedure with regard to the management of unallocated income.  

Other work in progress: 
• Fixed Assets 
• Payroll 
• Main Accounting System (MAS) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 79



Official 
 

  20  

Digital Transformation and Business Support 
Audit Report  

Risk Area / Audit Entity 
 Residual Risk / Audit Comment 

The following audits from 2023/24 have been completed and finalised since September  

IT Asset Management 
 
Limited Assurance 
 
Status: Final issued 18/10/23 
 
Draft issued 16/08/23 

See Part 2 

Other work in-progress: 
• IT Access Controls 
• Firewalls 
• Project Management Follow-Up from 22/23 
• Change Management Follow-Up from 22/23 

 
Climate Change, Environment & Transport  

Audit Report Risk Area / Audit Entity Residual Risk / Audit Comment 
No audits have been completed and finalised since September  
Other work in progress: 

• Planning Team Processes 
• SEND Transport Follow-Up from 22/23 
• Response to Extreme Weather Events 
• Response to Highways Safety Related Issues 
• Sustainable Drainage Systems (SuDS) 

 
 
 
 

P
age 80



Official 
 

  21  

Finance & Public Value  
Audit Report Risk Area / Audit Entity Residual Risk / Audit Comment 

The following audits from 2023/24 have been completed and finalised since September  
Financial Regulations 
 
Advisory piece of work 
 
Status: Final 
 

Audit were asked to undertake a review of the proposed amendments to the Financial Regulations, all was found to be 
satisfactory. 

Other work in progress: 
 

1. FINEST System Replacement - to provide advice on risk and controls through attendance at meetings 
2. Barclaycard / Procurement Card Spend Analysis 
3. Budget Targets – Delivery of Savings 
4. Best Value 
5. Governance of Corporate Contracts 
6. Budget Setting Process 

P
age 81



 

  22  

 

No audits have been completed and finalised since September 
Other work in-progress:  

• Job Evaluation 
• Expenses 

 
Grant Claims Certified Since September 

Audit Report Grant Name Grant Certification Audit Comment – if applicable 
Sustainable Warmth - Home Upgrade 
Grant  (HUG 1) 
LCTB Capital Block Funding (includes 
Transport Infrastructure Investment Fund 
Bus Subsidy Opportunity Grant (BSOG) 

Certified Grant Certification without amendment. 

Supported Families Programme August Certified Significant & Sustained Progress: Potential claim 20; Tested 3 ; Failed  0: Claim made 20 
families = £16,000 

Supported Families Programme 
September 

Certified Sustained Progress.  Potential claim 104; tested 10; failed 0; claim made 104 families = 
£83,200 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

People & Culture  
Audit Report Risk Area / Audit Entity Residual Risk / Audit Comment 

P
age 82



 

  23  

Appendix 2 - Definitions 
 

Definitions of Audit Assurance Opinion Levels Definition of Recommendation Priority 
Assurance Definition 

Substantial 
Assurance 

A sound system of governance, risk management and control 
exist across the organisation, with internal controls operating 
effectively and being consistently applied to support the 
achievement of strategic and operational objectives. 

 High 

A significant finding. A key control is absent or is being 
compromised; if not acted upon this could result in high 
exposure to risk. Failure to address could result in internal or 
external responsibilities and obligations not being met. 

Reasonable 
Assurance 

There are generally sound systems of governance, risk 
management and control exist across the organisation, with 
internal controls operating effectively and being consistently 
applied to support the achievement of strategic and operational 
objectives. 

 Medium 

Control arrangements not operating as required resulting in a 
moderate exposure to risk. This could result in minor disruption 
of service, undetected errors or inefficiencies in service 
provision. Important recommendations made to improve 
internal control arrangements and manage identified risks. 

Limited 
Assurance 

Significant gaps, weaknesses or non-compliance were identified 
across the organisation. Improvement is required to the system 
of governance, risk management and control to effectively 
manage risks and ensure that strategic and operational 
objectives can be achieved. 

 Low 

Low risk issues, minor system compliance concerns or process 
inefficiencies where benefit would be gained from improving 
arrangements. Management should review, make changes if 
considered necessary or formally agree to accept the risks.  
These issues may be dealt with outside of the formal report 
during the course of the audit. 

No Assurance 

Immediate action is required to address fundamental control 
gaps, weaknesses or issues of non-compliance identified 
across the organisation. The system of governance, risk 
management and control are inadequate to effectively manage 
risk to the achievement of strategic and operational objectives. 

 Opportunity 

A recommendation to drive operational improvement which 
may enable efficiency savings to be realised, capacity to be 
created, support opportunity for commercialisation / income 
generation or improve customer experience.  These 
recommendations do not feed into the assurance control 
environment. 

 
 

Direction of Travel Indicators 
Indicator Definitions 

 

No Progress has been made. 
The action plan is not being progressed at this time; actions 
remain outstanding. 

 

Progress has been made but further work is required. 
The action plan is being progressed though some actions are 
outside of agreed timescales or have stalled. 

Devon Audit Partnership 
The Devon Audit Partnership has been formed under a joint committee 
arrangement comprising of Plymouth, Torbay and Devon councils.  We aim to be 
recognised as a high-quality internal audit service in the public sector.  We work 
with our partners by providing a professional internal audit service that will assist 
them in meeting their challenges, managing their risks and achieving their goals.  
In carrying out our work we are required to comply with the Public Sector Internal 
Audit Standards along with other best practice and professional standards.  The 
Partnership is committed to providing high quality, professional customer services 
to all; if you have any comments or suggestions on our service, processes or 
standards, the Head of Partnership would be pleased to receive them at 
tony.d.rose@devon.gov.uk 
 

 

Good Progress has/is being made. 
Good Progress has continued. 

 

 

P
age 83

mailto:tony.d.rose@devon.gov.uk


 

  24  

 
Appendix 3 – Audit Authority

Support, Assurance and Innovation

Service Provision
The Internal Audit (IA) Service for Devon 
County Council is delivered by the Devon 
Audit Partnership (DAP). This is a shared 

service arrangement constituted under 
section 20 of the Local Government Act 
2000. The Partnership undertakes an 

objective programme of audits to ensure 
that there are sound and adequate 
internal controls in place across the 

whole of the Council. It also ensures that 
the Council’s assets and interests are 
accounted for and safeguarded from 

error, fraud, waste, poor value for money 
or other losses.

Regulatory Role
There are two principal pieces of legislation 

that impact upon internal audit in local 
authorities:

Section 5 of the Accounts and Audit 
Regulations (England) Regulations 2015 
which states that ‘a relevant authority must 

undertake an effective internal audit to 
evaluate the effectiveness of its risk 

management, control and governance 
processes, taking into account public sector 
internal auditing standards or guidance…..”

Section 151 of the Local Government 
Act 1972, which requires every local 

authority to make arrangements for the 
proper administration of its financial affairs

Professional Standards
We work to professional guidelines which 

govern the scope, standards and conduct of 
Internal Audit as set down in the Public Sector 

Internal Audit Standards. 
DAP, through external assessment, 

demonstrates that it meets the Public Sector 
Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS).

Our Internal Audit Manual provides the method 
of work and Internal Audit works to and with the 

policies, procedures, rules and regulations 
established by the Authority. These include 

standing orders, schemes of delegation, 
financial regulations, conditions of service, anti-

fraud and corruption strategies, fraud 
prevention procedures and codes of conduct, 

amongst others.

Strategy
Internal Audit Strategy sets out 

how the service will be provided, 
and the Internal Audit Charter 

describes the purpose, authority 
and principal responsibilities of 

the audit function.

P
age 84



 

  25  

Appendix 4 - Audit, Risk & Counter Fraud Integration 
Support, Assurance and Innovation 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
Our Goals 
 

Our Focus

Our Vision
To be the leading provider of assurances services covering internal audit, counter fraud and risk 
management to public and not-for-profit organisations in the South West and beyond.

Operational delivery
- Assurance Audit Plans based on the best and most up 

to date risk information 

- Agile Internal Audit Plan

- Live risk management reporting and support across 

the Council 

- Deliver a best in class risk management framework 

- Counter Fraud Team co-ordinate / undertake 

irregularities work coming through the audit plan

- Potential irregularities triaged to fraud or audit for 

review

- Proactive fraud work e.g. NFI, developing a delivery 

plan at client level

- Investigation work to be completed jointly (where 

appropriate) to progress possible fraud review and 

strengthen internal control frameworks

- Audit scoping to include Counter Fraud input

- Three-way liaison confirming risk and control

- Integrated reporting to be delivered where possible

Meet Client Needs

IA, RM & CF 
Working Together

Efficiency

Infrastructure

•Counter Fraud Strategy
•Integrated Audit, Risk and Counter Fraud Activity
•Easy access to additional services
•Respond jointly to client concerns

•Joint working practices
•Staff understanding of audit, risk and fraud 
interrelationships

•Assurance Ofifcers 
•Joint reviews on client functions and operations
•Best skills from each team used at the right time
•Tell us once 
•Joint outcomes

•Integrated resource management
•Joint Performance Reporting
•Joint infrastructure  

Page 85





 

 
 

FPV/23/117 
DCC Audit Committee 
27th November 2023 
 
Report of the Director of Finance  
Risk Management Update November 2023 
 

Please note that the following recommendations are subject to consideration and 
determination by the Committee before taking effect.  

 
1) Recommendation 
 
That the Committee: -  
 

i. review the most recent risk position for 2023/24 including notable changes, 
and via the Power BI Dashboard.   

ii. review the updates to the risk management process as supported by Devon 
Audit Partnership.  

  
The attached report sets out the risk position of the Council, updates on changes to risk 
management arrangements during 2023/24 to date and confirms the role of the Audit 
Committee as per the Council’s Risk Management Policy.  It further explores and 
summarises the existing risk position via links to visual reporting of risks using the Power BI 
platform.  
   
As requested by Members, information relating to risk mitigation is included within the 
report.   
  
Appendix A – Extract of the current Very High risks the council faces (based on Current 
Risk Score)  
Appendix B – Risk Scoring Guide  
Appendix C – Power BI Extract  
Appendix D – Audit, Risk & Counter Fraud Integration  
 
2) Background / Introduction 
 
The report is aimed at informing members of areas of High risk and notable changes that 
may need further review, as well as providing the required assurance that Risk 
Management activity is live and supporting the Council in its activities, as well as meeting 
its statutory requirement for effective risk management.  
 
3) Main Body / Proposal 
 
As above.  
 
 

Page 87

Agenda Item 7



 

 
 

4) Options / Alternatives  
 
Not Applicable 
 
5) Consultations / Representations / Technical Data 
 
This report has been agreed with DCC SLT. 
 
6) Strategic Plan:  
 
There are no strategic plan issues associated with this report.  
 
7) Financial Considerations:  
 
There are no direct Financial Considerations issues associated with this report. 
 
8) Legal Consideration:  
 
There are no specific Legal Considerations or issues associated with this report.  
 
9) Environmental Impact Considerations (Including Climate Change):  
 
There are no specific Environmental Impact Considerations or issues associated with this 
report.  
 
10) Equality Considerations:  
 
There are no specific Equality considerations associated with this report.  

 
11) Risk Management Considerations:  
 
The attached report sets out the risk position of the Council. 
 
12) Public Health Impact:  
 
There is no specific impact on Public Health in connection with this report.  
 
13) Summary/Conclusions/Reasons for Recommendations:  
 
Reasons for reviewing the report and information within it are linked to the Committees 
Terms of Refence and those relevant to this meeting. 
 
 

i. review the most recent risk position for 2023/24 including notable changes, and via 
the Power BI Dashboard.   
iii. review the updates to the risk management process as supported by Devon 

Audit Partnership.  
 

Page 88

Agenda Item 7



 

 
 

 
Angie Sinclair  
Director of Finance and Public Value 
 
Electoral Divisions: All 
 
Local Government Act 1972: List of background papers 
Nil  
 
Contact for enquiries: 
Name: Ken Johnson 
Tel No: (01392) 382528 
 

Page 89

Agenda Item 7





 
 
 

Risk Management  
 
Audit Committee 
 
In-Year Risk Management Update 
2023/2024  
 
Devon County Council 
  
 
November 2023  
Official 

 
 

P
age 91



Audit Committee - Risk Management Update November 2023 
 

Introduction and purpose of this report  
Recent changes to the Senior leadership Team across the Council has brought an increased 
awareness of risk and an even more positive approach to risk management. Services are more 
engaged than they have been for many years, and this helps to support the identification and 
management of risks. Managing, identifying and mitigating risks is more important now than it ever 
has been, to increase the likelihood of success and to be more resilient to change and challenges. 
 
Devon Audit Partnership (DAP) continues to support the Council in its vision to “manage potential 
opportunities and threats in achieving its objectives”.  
 
This risk update serves as a comprehensive overview for the Audit Committee, providing insight into 
the current risk performance, current work and tasks, trends and noteworthy points or topics. 
  

Risk In Numbers   

 
 
The above graphic details the current risk information as of 14th November 2023. Clearly our attention 
is on the risks that have the highest score, the 9 risks that have the ‘Very High’ rating are: 
 
The above figures include all risks recorded on the DCC Risk Management System, including Budget 
Book risks, Devon Pension Fund, Peninsula Pensions and Project risks.  
 

Demand for Children’s Services exceeds the 
financial provision (managing unit cost 
pressures) 
Demand for Childrens Social Work (managing 
demand for services and packages of care) 

Children and Young People’s Futures –  
Social Care 

CYPF: Savings and cost management 
strategies (Budget Book risk) 
High Needs Block/DSG Deficit (insufficient 
funding to meet demand) 

Children and Young People’s Futures – 
Education and Early Help 

Failure to adhere to the statutory SEND Code 
of Practice: 0 to 25 Years 

Economy, Enterprise and Skills  Exeter Science Park (loan guarantee)  
HR Recruitment and Retention 

Corporate Services – ICT  ICT 
 Successful Cyber Attack 

Risk Update 
In recent months we have provided facilitation and support to the Council’s service areas including 
Children and Young People’s Futures, Legal & Democratic Services, and Economy Enterprise and 
Skills.  

New risks have been included on the Risk Registers relating to risk of ‘High Consequence Infectious 
Disease’ and risk of ‘Insufficient capacity to support MCA (Mental Capacity Act) practice quality’. 
 
 

Page 92



Audit Committee - Risk Management Update November 2023 
 
Budget Book Risks. 
 
Risks recorded in the published Budget Book are recorded on the risk management system.  
 
Currently, 66 risks sit within this Risk Register, the classification of these risks are detailed below: 
 

 
 
 
The Budget Book risk register can be viewed by Members at Budget Book Risk Recording.  
 
Where a budget book Risk (as included in the published Budget Book) duplicates or overlaps with an 
existing service area risk, we have worked with officers to address this on the system and so avoid 
the effort in updating two risk records.  
 
This approach has been taken for the Integrated Adult Social Care Service Area, where budget book 
risks have been ‘stood down.’ The related budget book risk will show on the Budget Book Risk 
Register with a very low score not requiring review, and the Service Risk is linked to the Budget Book 
Risk Register. This approach has also recently been taken for some Children and Young People’s 
Future Budget Book risks. 
 
The Risk Management team has been tasked with providing support to the Budget Management 
Group to provide challenge and support around these risks. There is a desire from Finance & Public 
Value leadership that financial risks should be regularly reviewed to respond to changes in the 
internal and external environment and to support the relevant officers in the achievement of goals. 
 
The Risk Management team regularly attend Budget Management Group meetings, to offer 
challenge and support to increase the overall accountability and increase the likelihood of success. 
There are future plans to support the regular 1-2-1 discussions with the accountancy team and 
relevant service area officers to utilise Risk Management tools and processes to increase success. 
 
Clearly, budgets are of high concern and present a very real risk, and therefore the Council must 
mitigate these to reduce the potential severity and likelihood of them occurring.  We are pleased to be 
engaged in this area. 
 
Future Finance Project. 
 
Another key area in Finance and Public Value is the project to support the replacement of its legacy 
finance system ‘Finest’. The contract has now been signed with Unit 4 and the project can now 
proceed in the implementation of the new system.  
 
Risk identification, analysis, mitigating, support and facilitation services have been provided for this 
project. Work continues to ensure that the risks are captured and recorded on the corporate risk 
register. The risk themes and stages are recorded as follows; 
 
Failure of Project Control - The risk that the project does not adequately put in place the measures 
required to control the project to time, quality, and budget; this includes risks around adequate project 
resourcing to achieve tasks. Non-achievement of this goal could lead to major consequence for the 
council.  
 
Failure of Long Term Benefits - The risk that the system is not well implemented and as a result 
does not support the achievement of the long-term transformation in financial management that is 
desired; this includes risks around user acceptance of the system risk such that, while functionally Page 93

https://risks.devon.gov.uk/service/budget-book-risks/


Audit Committee - Risk Management Update November 2023 
 
adequate, the system is not accepted by all or some users leading to dissatisfaction and inefficient 
practice. The impact of this risk occurring could have a major impact on the Council as its staff will 
not be able to utilise the new system correctly and morale will be impacted with those that are using 
the system. 
 
Functional Failure - The risk that we lose control of our finances and are unable to account (pay or 
receive funds) or make financial transactions as per statutory duties. Without being able to pay our 
creditors and receive incoming funds could have Catastrophic consequences.   
 
SEND Finance 
 
We continue to attend weekly meetings supporting the response and management of SEND financial 
challenges with finance and children’s services colleagues. SEND risks have been identified and 
scored accordingly.   
 
Changes in the risk picture; 
 
Appendix A details the risks with a current score of ‘Very high’. 
 
Since the last report to Audit Committee it is noted that the HR Recruitment and Retention risk has, 
on assessment by the service area, increased by 9 points from High to Very High.  
 
CYPF risks remain under review by the service area and the Children’s Services Leadership Team.  
 
At the 25th September 2023 Audit Committee meeting, Members requested updated information on 
budgeted spend on placements to support children in care and care experienced young people. This 
information has been provided by the Finance team and the ‘Demand for Children’s Services 
exceeds the financial provision (managing unit cost pressures)’ risk record has been updated 
accordingly.   
 
Power Dashboard – Maximising access to new software is enabling risk reporting to become more 
interactive and live.  Power BI is used to provide a visual presentation of current risk information, the 
link below can be used to see the current risk reporting. The tab for Audit Committee is under 
development and will be finalised shortly. In the meantime, the summary page can be used to filter by 
Directorate. The All Risks Power BI Dashboard will be further updated shortly and training for 
Members on the use of Power BI reporting will be provided.   
 
The Dashboard displays an overall risk profile for the Council and should provide both insight and 
assurance to the Committee that the risk management process is continuing to capture and update 
risks linked to current activities. The information within this dashboard is updated from the Risk 
Register every 7 days, providing the most up to date view of data. The Dashboard is evolving to 
ensure that the information held is presented in a clear and useable format.   
 
Other areas of focus: 
 
Shared Corporate Risks  
The Risk Management team is working with SLT leads and Leadership Teams to address new and 
emerging shared corporate risks, for example Use of Artificial Intelligence. 
 
Corporate Risk Management Group. 
 
Each of the service areas at the Council have a risk representative, or Risk Champion. We work 
closely alongside these officers to ensure the management of risk is met according to the Council’s 
framework and policies. 

Page 94

https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fapp.powerbi.com%2Fgroups%2Feff53ba2-d94d-4830-8b0f-147211b33301%2Freports%2Ffa0169a4-ee84-4050-80bb-3f4b95a753e4%2FReportSection1a655e12e5b984d97e85%3Fexperience%3Dpower-bi&data=05%7C01%7CKate.MacDowall%40devon.gov.uk%7C0d2e0a560b844db45ea008dbad249d7f%7C8da13783cb68443fbb4b997f77fd5bfb%7C0%7C0%7C638294144996752059%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=FYHstRS6sS2KW7mpJc2cL2fefEyBshuBBhGJChpPszM%3D&reserved=0


Audit Committee - Risk Management Update November 2023 
 
 
Collectively the Council’s Risk Champions form the Council’s Corporate Risk Management Group. 
Details of CRMG Membership. The Group meets on a quarterly basis to discuss the approach to risk 
at the Council and the top risks facing the Council. One-to-one meetings with Risk Champions take 
place outside of the quarterly meetings, and an on-going risk dialogue is maintained.  
 
Horizon Scanning 
 
The Risk Management team continue to monitor the internal and external environment for upcoming 
potential risks and events that could significantly impact the Council’s ability to deliver its statutory 
services or achievement of its objectives. 
 
We also keep abreast of the global, national and regional ‘external’ risk position and the impact of  
external risks on the Council, it’s service and population.  
 
The Council also benefits from DAP’s creation and chairing of the Regional Risk Management Group.  
This group is made up of risk experts from other public bodies across the South-West, including the 
Met Office, NHS Integrated Care Board, Police, Fire and Rescue and other Councils. This gives the 
team the opportunity to understand and identify cross cutting risks in the local and national context. 

The Chartered Institute of Internal Auditor’s (II) Risk In Focus 2024 Report and Risk In Focus 2024 
Board Briefing are recommended reading and can be viewed at Risk in Focus | Research reports| 
Policy and research | IIA. The IIA report lists the top five risks organisations currently face as being:-  

Cyber and Data Security; Human Capital, Diversity, Talent Management and Retention; Change in 
Laws and Regulations; Macroeconomic and Geopolitical Uncertainty; and Business Continuity, 
Operational Resilience, Crisis Management.  

Digital disruption, New Technology and AI is listed sixth; followed by Climate change, Biodiversity 
and Environmental Sustainability; Supply Chain, Outsourcing and 'nth' Party Risk; Market Changes, 
Competition and Changing Consumer Behaviour; and Financial, Liquidity and Insolvency Risks. 

Further details can be obtained from Devon Audit Partnership via Tony Rose (Head of Partnership) 
tony.d.rose@devon.gov.uk, or Brad Hutton (Senior Assurance Manager) 
Bradley.hutton@devon.gov.uk who will be pleased to receive your comments and thoughts on risk 
management within the Council.  

 

Supporting Appendices 
 
Appendix A – Risk Register Extracts 
 
Appendix B – Risk Scoring Guidance  
 
Appendix C – Power BI Extract  
 
Appendix D – Audit, Risk & Counter Fraud Integration 

Page 95

https://devoncc.sharepoint.com/sites/Corp/RiskManagement/Shared%20Documents/Forms/AllItems.aspx?id=%2Fsites%2FCorp%2FRiskManagement%2FShared%20Documents%2FCRMGMembership.pdf&parent=%2Fsites%2FCorp%2FRiskManagement%2FShared%20Documents&p=true&ga=1
https://www.iia.org.uk/media/1693097/ciia-risk-in-focus-2024_final-web.pdf
https://www.iia.org.uk/media/1693096/ciia-risk-in-focus-2024-board-briefing_final-web.pdf
https://www.iia.org.uk/media/1693096/ciia-risk-in-focus-2024-board-briefing_final-web.pdf
https://www.iia.org.uk/policy-and-research/research-reports/risk-in-focus/
https://www.iia.org.uk/policy-and-research/research-reports/risk-in-focus/
mailto:tony.d.rose@devon.gov.uk
mailto:Bradley.hutton@devon.gov.uk


Audit Committee - Risk Management Update November 2023 
 

 
 

Appendix A – An extract of the Very Highest Rated Risks Based on Current (Mitigated) Risk Score. 
Risk Title Service Area Risk 

Category 
Current Impact Current 

Likelihood 
Current Rating  Risk Owner Accountable 

Officer 
Change 
direction 

Score 
change 
since 
last 
review 

CYPF: Savings 
and Cost 
Management 
Strategies  

CYPF  - 
Children’s 
Social Care 

Financial  4 : Major 6 : Almost Certain 24: Very High Jassi 
Broadmeadow 

Stuart Collins  + 12 
(awaiting 
review)  

High Needs 
Block/DSG 
Deficit 
(insufficient 
funding to meet 
demand) 

CYPF  - 
Education and 
Early Help 

Financial  4 : Major 6 : Almost Certain 24: Very High Kellie Knott Stuart Collins  0 

BI21 - 
Successful 
Cyber Attack 

Council Wide – 
Digital 
Transformation 
& Business 
Support 

Operational 4 : Major 6 : Almost Certain 24: Very High John Bristow Gary Dempster  0 

Corporate 
Services ICT  

IT Strategic 
Commissioning 

Financial  4 : Major 6 : Almost Certain 24: Very High John Bristow Gary Dempster  0 

Exeter Science 
Park (loan 
guarantee) 

Economy 
Enterprise and 
Skills 

Financial  4 : Major 6 : Almost Certain 24: Very High Keri Denton Steve Brown  0 
(awaiting 
review) 

HR: 
Recruitment 
and Retention  

Human 
Resources 

Operational 4 : Major 6 : Almost Certain 24: Very High Andrea Owen Maria 
Chakraborty 

 + 9  

Demand for 
Children’s 
Services 
exceeds the 
financial 
provision 
(managing unit 
cost pressures) 

CYPF  - 
Children’s 
Social Care 

Financial  4 : Major 6 : Almost Certain 24: Very High Karen 
Powlesland 

Stuart Collins  0 

Demand for 
Children’s 
Social Work 
(managing 

CYPF - 
Children’s 
Social Care 

Financial  4 : Major 6 : Almost Certain 24: Very High Jassi 
Broadmeadow 

Stuart Collins  0  

                                                                                                                             

                         

                                                                                                                             

                         

                                                                                                                             

                         

                                                                                                                             

                         

                                                                                                                             

                         

                         

P
age 96



Audit Committee - Risk Management Update November 2023 
 

Risk Title Service Area Risk 
Category 

Current Impact Current 
Likelihood 

Current Rating  Risk Owner Accountable 
Officer 

Change 
direction 

Score 
change 
since 
last 
review 

demand for 
services and 
packages of 
care) 
Failure to 
adhere to the 
statutory SEND 
Code of 
Practice: 0 to 25 
Years 
 

CYPF  - 
Education and 
Early Help 

Compliance  4 : Major 6 : Almost Certain 24: Very High Kellie Knott Stuart Collins   +8 

 
 

Some of the risk titles included in the table above have recently been updated to better articulate the risk to the service area, this applies to risks ‘High Needs 
Block/DSG Deficit (insufficient funding to meet demand)’, ‘Demand for Children’s Services exceeds the financial provision (managing unit cost pressures)’, and 
‘Demand for Children’s Social Work (managing demand for services and packages of care)’. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 97



Audit Committee - Risk Management Update November 2023 
 

 
Appendix B – Risk Scoring Guidance  

 
Risk Scoring Guidance is published at Manage risks - tasks and guides (devon.gov.uk)  
 
This includes a risk Impact Assessment Guide, risk Likelihood Guide and One page risk management Summary (including risk scoring matrix) 

 
 
 

P
age 98

https://inside.devon.gov.uk/task/manage-risks/


Audit Committee - Risk Management Update November 2023 
 

 
 

P
age 99



Audit Committee - Risk Management Update November 2023 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

P
age 100



Audit Committee - Risk Management Update November 2023 
 

 
Appendix C – Power BI Extract  

 
 
Note – This is a point in time extract, not a reflection of the data as it will be at the time of accessing via PowerBi. 
 

 
Please note that the data contained within the above pdf extract is representational. Please view the Power BI link for full risk information. 

 
 

P
age 101



Audit Committee - Risk Management Update November 2023 
 
Appendix D - Audit, Risk & Counter Fraud Integration 
Support, Assurance and Innovation 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
Our Goals 

Our Focus

Our Vision
To be the leading provider of assurances services covering internal audit, counter fraud and risk 
management to public and not-for-profit organisations in the South West and beyond.

Operational delivery
- Assurance Audit Plans based on the best and most 

up to date risk information 

- Agile Internal Audit Plan

- Live risk management reporting and support across 

the Council.

- Deliver a best in class risk management framework 

- Counter Fraud Team co-ordinate / undertake 

irregularities work coming through the audit plan

- Potential irregularities triaged to fraud or audit for 

review. Use of data analytics.

- Proactive fraud work e.g. NFI, developing a delivery 

plan at client level

- Investigation work to be completed jointly (where 

appropriate) to progress possible fraud review and 

strengthen internal control frameworks

- Audit scoping to include Counter Fraud input

- Three-way liaison confirming risk and control

- Integrated reporting to be delivered where possible

Meet Client Needs

IA, RM & CF 
Working Together

Efficiency

Infrastructure

•Counter Fraud Strategy
•Integrated Audit, Risk and Counter Fraud Activity
•Easy access to additional services
•Respond jointly to client concerns

•Joint working practices
•Staff understanding of audit, risk and fraud 
interrelationships

•Assurance Ofifcers 
•Joint reviews on client functions and operations
•Best skills from each team used at the right time
•Tell us once 
•Joint outcomes

•Integrated resource management
•Joint Performance Reporting
•Joint infrastructure  

Page 102



 

 
 

FPV/23/118 
DCC Audit Committee 
27th November 2023 
 
Counter Fraud Update November 2023 
 
Report of the Director of Finance  
 

Please note that the following recommendations are subject to consideration and 
determination by the Committee before taking effect.  

 
1) Recommendation 
 
That the Committee: -  
 

i. Note the update in connection with Fraud Prevention and Detection in DCC.  
 
The attached report sets out the Counter Fraud work being undertaken on behalf of and by 
Devon County Council for the first six months of the financial year 23/24 and supports the 
Councils ongoing commitment as outlined in its Anti-Fraud Bribery and Corruption Policy / 
Strategy and Response Plan.   
 
2) Background / Introduction 
 
The report is aimed at informing members of ongoing activity in the fight against fraud, to 
protect the public purse and retain public confidence that the Council recognises the harm 
that fraud can cause in the community and that it is protecting itself and its residents from 
fraud. 
 
 
3) Main Body / Proposal 
 
The attached report sets out the Counter Fraud work being undertaken on behalf of and by 
Devon County Council for the first six months of the financial year 23/24 and supports the 
Councils ongoing commitment as outlined in its Anti-Fraud Bribery and Corruption Policy / 
Strategy and Response Plan.   
 
4) Options / Alternatives  
 
Not Applicable 
 
5) Consultations / Representations / Technical Data 
 
This report has been agreed with DCC SLT. 
 
 

Page 103

Agenda Item 8



 

 
 

6) Strategic Plan:  
 
There are no strategic plan issues associated with this report.  
 
7) Financial Considerations:  
 
There are no direct Financial Considerations issues associated with this report. 
 
8) Legal Consideration:  
 
There are no specific Legal Considerations or issues associated with this report.  
 
9) Environmental Impact Considerations (Including Climate Change):  
 
There are no specific Environmental Impact Considerations or issues associated with this 
report.  
 
10) Equality Considerations:  
 
There are no specific Equality considerations associated with this report  

 
11) Risk Management Considerations:  
 
There are no specific Risk Management considerations associated with this report  
 
12) Public Health Impact:  
 
There is no specific impact on Public Health in connection with this report.  
 
13) Summary/Conclusions/Reasons for Recommendations:  
 
Reasons for reviewing the report and information within it are linked to the Committees 
Terms of Refence and those relevant to this meeting. 
 

i. Note the update in connection with Fraud Prevention and Detection in DCC.  
 
 
Angie Sinclair  
Director of Finance and Public Value 
 
Electoral Divisions: All 
 
Local Government Act 1972: List of background papers 
Nil  
 
Contact for enquiries: 
Name: Ken Johnson, Tel No: (01392) 382528 

Page 104

Agenda Item 8



  

Page | 1 

OFFICIAL

 
 
 

 
 
 

Devon County Council  

Devon Audit Partnership  

Counter Fraud Update    

Audit Committee November 2023

Page 105



 

Page 2 of 10 
 

1. Executive Summary 
 

1.1 The following is the Devon Audit Partnership (DAP) Counter Fraud Services Team Half Year 
Report and Update for the first half of the financial year 2023/24. It outlines the counter fraud 
work undertaken in support of Devon County Council and its continued efforts to ensure that 
appropriate Governance processes are in place. This includes acknowledging the threats posed 
by fraud, preventing and pursuing those who would look to commit fraud and providing 
assurance that the Council and the public are being protected from fraud. 
 

1.2 In the past six months the Counter Fraud Services Team have –  
 

• Received and processed 38 allegations of fraud and related offences against the Council and 
its citizens. 

 
• Supported the Council’s commitment to the National Fraud Initiative, by checking matches and 

supporting the relevant departments accordingly. Checks against higher risk matches continue 
to be undertaken by the Council and by DAP staff. Current savings figure against this exercise 
is a £1,242,830.00. 

 
• Undertaken rolling monthly data analysis exercises to identify potential fraud and error in 

multiple Council systems. 
 

• Provided support and technical advice to management and staff around internal and external 
threats. 
 

• Progressed the Single Person Discount review initiative which is now resulting in uplift in 
Council Tax collectible revenue.  

 
1.3 It is good to be able to report that much good work has again been carried out across the 

Council and that fraud awareness and counter fraud activity is increasing and we will continue 
to encourage this work throughout the rest of the year. Of special note is the hard work that staff 
within the Council itself have been undertaking in respect of the National Fraud Initiative (see 
section 5 below) clearing these matches shows a commitment to fighting fraud and maintaining 
accurate and up to date records, which in turn makes potential fraud easier to uncover.      
 

2. Introduction 
 
2.1 The Counter Fraud Services Team within Devon Audit Partnership (DAP) continues to support 

and facilitate the development of the Council’s Counter Fraud processes and capability to 
improve its resilience to fraud and related offences.   

 
2.2 The ongoing work will assist all Council staff, management, and members in identifying fraud 

and the risks associated with it. The aim is to ultimately provide the highest level of assurance 
possible utilising a joined-up service in association with our colleagues involved in Audit, Risk 
Management, and the Council itself to minimise fraud loss to the lowest level possible. 

 
2.3 Reporting Counter Fraud activity is part of good Governance, and regular updates on the 

Council’s Counter Fraud activity improves accountability; this report aims to meet this 
requirement and the requirements for such reports in accordance with the Councils own Anti-
Fraud, Bribery and Corruption Policy and the accompanying Strategy and Response Plan. 

 
2.4 It is always worth reiterating that fraud is by definition a crime and should not be tolerated. Any 

fraud against Devon County Council is a fraud against the public purse.  We will continue to 
acknowledge the threat from fraud, build processes and policies that will prevent fraud and 

Page 106

https://www.devonaudit.gov.uk/
https://www.devonaudit.gov.uk/our-services/counter-fraud/


 

Page 3 of 10 
 

pursue those who would commit fraud to ensure that the public retain confidence in the Council. 
Collaboration across the public sector will continue and strengthen under the current working 
arrangements through DAP and its partners. 

 
3. Fraud Response / Resilience Assessment. 

  
3.1 The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) reports that local 

authorities have achieved success by taking a structured response to fraud and that they now 
need to respond to an ever-increasing fraud threat, and further develop and enhance their 
counter fraud response by ensuring that it is comprehensive and effective and focused on the 
key changes that will make the most difference. 
 

3.2 A local authority is self-regulating in respect of counter fraud. It should aim to show that it 
undertakes realistic self-assessment and has identified and understands the major risks. 
It should acknowledge the problems and put in place plans which can demonstrate that it is 
taking action with visible outcomes. It should aim to create a transparent process and report 
the results to the corporate management team and those charged with governance. 

 
3.3  Devon Audit Partnership will continue to encourage best practice in line with CIPFA guidance 

and enable the Council to share knowledge and understanding of the threats faced across the 
region and nationally by actively engaging with the West of England Fraud Group and the 
Fighting Fraud and Corruption Locally Regional Group. It will also integrate other best practice 
as and when these are discovered by the team or by others within the counter fraud community. 

 
3.4 The 22/23 assessment was very positive and future assessments we will be looking to add 

further value by providing a more granular view with suggestions for further improvement in 
order to ensure that the Council maximises its resilience as the fraud picture changes. 

 
4. Integration of Counter Fraud, Risk Management, and Internal Audit. 

 
4.1 The integration between these assurance arms continues to evolve and 

strengthen. Regular meetings between the relevant managers and staff 
ensure that cross collaboration is growing and improving so that auditors 
are aware of fraud and risk issues (See Appendix 1). 

  
4.2 Assurance meetings between Devon Audit Partnership and the Director 

of Finance and Public Value (Section 151 Officer), along with members of 
the Finance and Public Value Leadership Team ensure that direction, 
clarity and flexibility continue to improve. 

 
4.3 The team continues to support our colleagues in Audit and Adults and Children’s Social Care 

teams, specifically looking at the risks linked to Cyber Enabled frauds that may affect some of 
the most vulnerable members of our society. We are committed to further increasing awareness 
and supporting the most vulnerable in society who are more at risk of falling victim to fraudsters. 
DAP is working with its colleagues in the NHS and Audit South West closely to understand and 
reduce fraud risks within pre-paid accounts funded care plans. More information can be 
obtained via the Action Fraud website on fraud affecting the most vulnerable. 

 
4.4 We are currently networking with all the Devon District / Borough Councils to improve overall 

fraud resilience in Devon. We are also obtaining a mutual support and knowledge exchange 
with our counterparts in Cornwall County Council and the Local NHS Trusts. The West of 
England Fraud Group has now been revived, which involves Councils across the region looking 
at Fraud, Risk and Audit issues which affect us all. Resilience and overall assurance are 
improved by the sharing awareness and knowledge, joining with others increases confidence in 

Page 107

https://www.actionfraud.police.uk/news/most-vulnerable-in-society-are-more-at-risk-of-falling-victim-to-fraudsters


 

Page 4 of 10 
 

decision making and the Team will continue to look for new partners and agencies to further this 
end.         

      
5. National Fraud Initiative  

 
5.1 The National Fraud Initiative (NFI) is an exercise run and reported on by 

the Cabinet Office that matches electronic data within and between 
public and private sector bodies to prevent and detect fraud and error. 

 
5.2 Devon Audit Partnership acts as 

the main point of contact between 
the Cabinet Office and the Council 
in matters relating to the National 
Fraud Initiative, this being a 
mandatory Biannual exercise in 
fraud prevention and detection. 

 
5.3 The previous exercise 20/21 

resulted in changes in entitlement 
which have resulted in an 
(estimated) total of £1,451,893.86 
in potential savings across the 
Council. 

 
5.4 The current exercise 22/23 is now 

approaching completion and all 
high-risk matches are being or 
have been addressed resulting in 
£1,242,830 in recordable savings as per Cabinet Office recorded results. The following teams 
are commended for their hard work and commitment in dealing with these matches whilst still 
carrying out the day-to-day business of their roles.  

 
• Finance and Public Value  
• Peninsula Pensions  
• Parking Services 
• Integrated Public Transport 
• HR and Payroll 

 
5.5  Departments that complete the returned matches show that they are actively involved reducing 

fraud risk to improve assurance as well as making sure that wherever possible their data 
management is compliant with the Data Protection Act 2018 by ensuring -   

 
• Data minimisation by ensuring that PCC only holds data that is required. 

 
• Accuracy by ensuring that the data held is as accurate as it can reasonably be expected to 

be. 
 

• Data retention periods, showing that data is not being held longer than is necessary for its 
intended use.      

 
5.6 Devon Audit Partnership will support and encourage completion of the NFI returns and results 

will be reported to the Audit Committee in the regular Counter Fraud Updates in future.  
    
6. Investigations and other ongoing work 

Page 108

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-fraud-initiative-reports
https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/cabinet-office


 

Page 5 of 10 
 

 
6.1 The team has highlighted and is heavily involved in assisting DCC with setting up, managing, 

and completing an exercise which allows participating Councils to identify instances of the 
incorrect application of Single Person Discounts, (SPD) related to Council Tax across Devon 
with all Councils who agree to participate. Most Councils will have been involved in this type of 
exercise in the past, however in this instance we are looking to involve all Districts and 
Boroughs in the same exercise to maximise Council Tax accuracy and correct billing across the 
County. 
 

6.2 Update – Four Local Authorities have now signed contracts to undertake the exercise. A further 
three are committed to the exercise but have yet to sign a contract, leaving just one local 
authority advising that “due to resourcing issues they will review in the new year.” We will 
continue to encourage this LA to participate fully to ensure that the correct level of Council Tax 
is accurately billed and collected appropriately.  

 
One LA’s exercise is already underway resulting in 288 Single Person Discounts being 
withdrawn with a conservative estimated revenue uplift figure of between £72,000.00 and 
£86,000.00 having already been realised.  
 
Two other Councils start their exercise at the end of this month and mid-way through 
November, results will be shared when they become available.  

 
6.3 We continue to support service areas that require data analysis and monitoring of transactions 

to act as early warning of impending cyber-attacks.  
 

6.4 The DAP Counter Fraud Team are looking to support the Traffic Management Team in the 
enforcement process around Blue Badge misuse. A plan of action has been drafted and agreed. 
Dates and details are now being worked out with the relevant teams to ensure adequate 
resourcing and training prior to commencement.   

 
6.5 Regular reports and updates from varying sources such as the National Anti-Fraud Network 

(NAFN) and the National Cyber Security Centre (NCSC) are circulated across the Council by the 
Counter Fraud Services team to ensure knowledge and awareness are kept at levels suitable for 
the protection of the public purse and the public themselves.  

 
6.6 The DAP Team is also looking into the latest offer form the Cabinet Office in respect membership 

of the ‘Fraud Hub’ which is a new tool that builds on the National Fraud Initiative (NFI), which is 
undertaken every 2 years to find fraud and error within public sector databases. 
The main advantage of signing up to the Fraud Hub is that data can be uploaded to the system 
at any time, to create a list of matches. There is functionality with the Fraud Hub to also match 
across organisations, for example, if Devon County Council and Plymouth City Council, both 
signed up to the system, their data could be matched against each other. This also includes Local 
Authorities outside of Devon Audit Partnership (as an example Bristol City Council are already a 
member). 
The average outcome per member for the 22/23 year was £793,153 in savings, this number can 
fluctuate based on the size of the authority, and also the number of times that matches are run. 
This figure will be a mixture of cashable and non-cashable savings. 
A report will be created for submission to the Director of Finance with our recommendations. 
 

7. Other fraud related updates 
 

7.1 The government is creating a new failure to prevent fraud offence to hold organisations to 
account if they profit from fraud committed by their employees. This will improve fraud 
prevention and protect victims. Whilst there are some existing powers to fine and prosecute 

Page 109

https://www.nafn.gov.uk/
https://www.ncsc.gov.uk/
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/economic-crime-and-corporate-transparency-bill-2022-factsheets/factsheet-failure-to-prevent-fraud-offence


 

Page 6 of 10 
 

organisations and their employees for fraud, the new offence will strengthen these, closing 
loopholes that have allowed organisations to avoid prosecution in the past.  
DAP and counter fraud professionals across the country are seeking further clarification around 
what this means for Councils, the Fighting Fraud and Corruption Locally Regional Group are 
meeting regularly to assess the impact and the DAP Counter Fraud Services Manager will 
update this committee as and when the new legislation becomes effective.  

 
7.2 The latest publication from the International Public Sector Fraud Forum (Sept 23) states that 

“Fraud is a serious, underestimated and often unchecked problem. All public sector 
organisations are exposed to fraud in some way, and many are an active target for fraudsters. 
International good practice shows the best way to deal with fraud is to prevent it.” DAP will be 
actively digesting all relevant material from the recent publication produced with the support of 
the UK’s Public Sector Fraud Authority, to further improve fraud resilience and increase its 
integrated assurance approach with colleagues in audit, risk and the wider Council. 
 

8. Conclusion 
 
8.1 As previously mentioned, it is of note in this half year report that the efforts made by 

management and staff within the Council to complete the National Fraud Initiative (NFI) Cabinet 
Office exercise has led to improved fraud resilience within their departments and the Council as 
a whole.  
 

8.2 It is clear from reports across all sectors of the UK economy and international partners that 
fraud is increasing, in some areas this is down to socio economic pressures, others involve 
organised crime and state sponsored attacks to obtain funds / data and or cause mistrust in our 
social systems. None of these threats should be underestimated and Devon continues to adapt 
and improve its resilience in countering fraud and related offences. 

 
8.3 Fraud remains and will continue to remain a threat to the Councils budgets and resources, the 

threat is ever changing, and the Council must remain flexible in order to respond appropriately. 
DAP will continue to support the Council to minimise fraud loss, maximise assurance and 
protect itself and its citizens. 
 

8.4 Fraud attacks the very foundations of society and that of any fair and equitable system of 
support for those who need Devon County Councils services the most. All indicators show that 
as finances become more difficult, individuals make decisions that they would otherwise 
potentially not make under other circumstances.        

 
8.5 Devon County Council’s continues to show that it is committed to improving its assurance 

position in respect of its fight against fraud and it has never been more important to minimise 
losses to fraud in order to protect Council Services and those they serve.    

 
8.6 We will continue to assist the Council in building stronger defences and protection against fraud 

to ensure that every £ of public spending goes on those who legitimately require it, when they 
need it and that those who would defraud the system are dealt with appropriately and robustly. 

 
  

Page 110

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/media/650c652e27d43b000d375b2a/3340_IPSFF_FCTF-01_Fraud_Control_Testing_Framework_V5__1___1_.pdf?utm_campaign=G24FRAUD%20-%20Subcom&utm_medium=email&_hsmi=278465250&_hsenc=p2ANqtz-9ouuuO07czH-vgpdJczQRkPelaauvactSlu-WXxYy-12H5Ds24Y_7GcOVGcOmT4y65iOAztBdXDKsdYFksVNT3UK54sWEKSSWaNQUClsbP9_y4Czs&utm_content=278465250&utm_source=hs_automation


 

Page 7 of 10 
 

 
 
 

 
Devon Audit Partnership has been formed under a joint committee arrangement comprising of Plymouth, 
Torbay, Devon, Mid Devon, North Devon, Torridge, South Hams and West Devon councils.  We aim to be 
recognised as a high-quality assurance service provider in the public sector.   
 
We work with our partners by providing a professional internal audit service that will assist them in meeting 
their challenges, managing their risks and achieving their goals.  In carrying out our work we are required to 
comply with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards along with other best practice and professional 
standards.   
 
The Partnership is committed to providing high quality, professional customer services to all; if you have any 
comments or suggestions on our service, processes or standards, the Head of Partnership would be 
pleased to receive them at tony.d.rose@devon.gov.uk. 
 

 

Confidentiality and Disclosure Clause - This report is protectively marked in accordance with the 
Government Security Classifications. It is accepted that issues raised may well need to be discussed with 
other officers within the Council, the report itself should only be copied/circulated/disclosed to anyone 
outside of the organisation in line with the organisation’s disclosure policies.  
This report is prepared for the organisation’s use.  We can take no responsibility to any third party for any 
reliance they might place upon it. 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Ken Johnson
Counter Fraud Services Manager 

Tony Rose
              Head of Devon Audit Partnership

Page 111

mailto:tony.d.rose@devon.gov.uk


 

Page 8 of 10 
 

(Fighting Fraud and Corruption Locally 2020) 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 112



 

Page 9 of 10 
 

Appendix 1- Audit, Risk & Counter Fraud Integration Plan 
Support, Assurance and Innovation 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Our Goals 

 

 
  

Meet Client Needs

IA, Risk & CF Working Together

Efficiency

Infrastructure

•Client Counter Fraud Strategy in place
•Integrated Audit, Risk and Counter Fraud Service Plan
•Easy access to additional services

•Joint working practices
•staff understanding of audit and fraud interrelationships

•annual Counter Fraud savings target achieved
• joint reviews on client functions and operations

•Integrated resource management and performance
•Joint infrastructure  

Our Focus

Our Vision
To be a leading provider of internal audit, counter fraud, risk management and other assurance services to public and 
not-for-profit organisations in the South West and beyond.

Client Services
Counter Fraud Strategy with 
each client
Regular client liaison Mtgs.
POC access to additional 
integrated services
CF Service plan with each 
client for both pro-active and 
re-active services
Joint Partner CF work e.g. 
SPD
Client training on Fraud 
Awareness

IA, Risk & CF Working Together
Joint Working Practices
Joint scoping of audit and 
Irregs
CF Risk Assessment 
Review - CIFAS
Joint IA, Risk & CF plan
Pro-active Prevention work
Pro-active Detection work
Effective Investigation

NFI work co-ordinated by 
CFT

Efficiency
Savings Plan £55k by year 
three

Restructure of PCC Team 
work plan (releasing 
resources)

Joint working practices

Single Point of Contact for 
Fraud and Irregs

Infrasturcture
Budget - Costcentre focused

Laptops for CFT

ICT Platform & common 
network access

Data Sharing Agreements 
updated

Terms and Conditions 
review

Risk

Counter 
Fraud

Internal 
Audit

Operational delivery

- CFT to co-ordinate / undertake irregularities work 

coming through the audit plan

- Potential irregularities are triaged to fraud or audit 

for review

- Proactive fraud work e.g. NFI, developing delivery 

plan at client level

- Investigation work to be completed jointly (where 

appropriate) to progress possible fraud review and 

strengthen internal control frameworks

- Audit scoping to include counter fraud input

- Three-way liaison confirming risk and control

- Integrated reporting to be delivered on a case basis

Page 113



 

Page 10 of 10 
 

Our Objectives 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 

In
te

gr
at

io
n

Page 114



Document is Restricted

Page 115

Agenda Item 10
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.





Document is Restricted

Page 117

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.




	Agenda
	A G E N D A
	Meetings Information and notes for visitors
	Getting to County Hall and Notes for Visitors
	Membership of a Committee
	Committee Terms of Reference
	Access to Information
	Public Participation
	Webcasting, Recording or Reporting of Meetings and Proceedings
	Declarations of Interest for Members of the Council
	WiFI
	Fire
	First Aid
	Mobile Phones
	Alternative Formats
	Induction Loop available


	4 Devon Pension Fund - Audit Findings
	Slide 1: The Audit Findings Report for Devon Pension Fund 
	Slide 2
	Slide 3: 1. Headlines
	Slide 4: 1. Headlines
	Slide 5: 2. Financial Statements 
	Slide 6: 2. Financial Statements
	Slide 7: 2. Financial Statements: Significant risks
	Slide 8: 2. Financial Statements:  Significant risks
	Slide 9: 2. Financial Statements: Significant risks
	Slide 10: 2. Financial Statements: new issues and risks
	Slide 11: 2. Financial Statements: key judgements and estimates
	Slide 12: 2. Financial Statements: key judgements and estimates
	Slide 13: 2. Financial Statements: Information Technology
	Slide 14: 2. Financial Statements:  other communication requirements
	Slide 15: 2. Financial Statements: other communication requirements
	Slide 16: 2. Financial Statements: other communication requirements
	Slide 17: 2. Financial Statements: other responsibilities under the Code
	Slide 18: 3. Independence and ethics 
	Slide 19: 3. Independence and ethics 
	Slide 20
	Slide 21: A. Communication of audit matters to those charged with governance
	Slide 22: B. Action Plan – Audit of Financial Statements
	Slide 23: C. Follow up of prior year recommendations
	Slide 24: D. Audit Adjustments
	Slide 25: D. Audit Adjustments
	Slide 26: E. Fees and non-audit services
	Slide 27: E. Fees and non-audit services
	Slide 28: F. Auditing developments
	Slide 29: G. Proposed audit opinion  
	Slide 30: G. Proposed audit opinion  
	Slide 31: G. Proposed audit opinion  
	Slide 32: G. Proposed audit opinion  
	Slide 33: G. Proposed audit opinion  
	Slide 34

	5 Devon County Council Audit Progress and Sector Update
	Slide 1: Devon County Council Audit Progress Report and Sector Update 
	Slide 2
	Slide 3: Introduction
	Slide 4: Progress at November 2023
	Slide 5: Financial Statements - Significant risks
	Slide 6: Financial Statements - Significant risks
	Slide 7: Financial Statements - Significant risks
	Slide 8: Financial Statements - Significant risks
	Slide 9: Financial Statements - Significant risks
	Slide 10: Other areas  
	Slide 11: Audit Deliverables - Council
	Slide 12: Audit Deliverables – Pension Fund
	Slide 13: Sector Update
	Slide 14: Exploring the reasons for delayed publication of audited local authority accounts in England – Grant Thornton
	Slide 15: Current local audit deadline ‘unachievable’- Grant Thornton
	Slide 16: Current local audit deadline ‘unachievable’- Grant Thornton(cont.)
	Slide 17: DLUHC proposals to clear audit backlog 
	Slide 18: Call for sanctions for late accounts amid fears of ‘more Wokings - public accounts committee (PAC)  
	Slide 19: Around 700,000 children are studying in schools that require major rebuilding or refurbishment works - NAO
	Slide 20: LGPS valuation gives ‘cause for optimism’ – Hymans Robertson 
	Slide 21: Sustainability reporting in the public sector - CIPFA 
	Slide 22: SEND deficits kept off budgets for another three years

	6 Internal Audit Update
	Report of the Director of Finance
	2)	Background / Introduction
	3)	Main Body / Proposal
	4)	Options / Alternatives
	5)	Consultations / Representations / Technical Data
	6)	Strategic Plan:
	There are no strategic plan issues associated with this report.
	Local Government Act 1972: List of background papers
	Internal Audit Mid Year Report
	Introduction
	Audit Assurance Statement
	Adaptive Plan – areas of review (priorities)
	Progress Against Plan
	Value Added
	Investigations and Irregularities
	Customer Value
	Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS)
	Appendix 1 - Summary of audit reports and findings from September to October 2023 (since last Audit Committee meeting)
	Appendix 2 - Definitions


	7 Risk Management Update
	Report of the Director of Finance
	1)	Recommendation
	2)	Background / Introduction
	3)	Main Body / Proposal
	4)	Options / Alternatives
	5)	Consultations / Representations / Technical Data
	6)	Strategic Plan:
	There are no strategic plan issues associated with this report.
	Local Government Act 1972: List of background papers
	Risk Management update
	Introduction and purpose of this report
	Risk In Numbers
	Risk Update
	New risks have been included on the Risk Registers relating to risk of ‘High Consequence Infectious Disease’ and risk of ‘Insufficient capacity to support MCA (Mental Capacity Act) practice quality’.

	Supporting Appendices


	8 Counter Fraud Update
	Report of the Director of Finance
	1)	Recommendation
	2)	Background / Introduction
	3)	Main Body / Proposal
	4)	Options / Alternatives
	5)	Consultations / Representations / Technical Data
	6)	Strategic Plan:
	There are no strategic plan issues associated with this report.
	Local Government Act 1972: List of background papers
	Counter Fraud Update

	10 IT Asset Management
	DCC ITAM 23-24 - Final Report


